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From the Managing Director’s Desk 
 

Esteemed Stakeholders,  
 

Your company steps into its 23rd fruitful year of service and at the outset, I extend my gratitude 
to each one of you for your continued support, particularly through the challenging time of the 
pandemic.  
 

Over the last two years, the Covid pandemic has affected the micro and macroeconomic 
environment, however, despite the external challenges, your company relentlessly focussed to 
deliver sustainable growth. Your company displayed faster recovery and improved operational 
efficiency with our sustainability business model during the crisis.  

 

During the last year, your company has exhibited remarkable resilience and with our ability to 
adapt to the challenges has allowed your company to emerge much more stronger than ever.  
 

We are proud to have emerge out of the crisis with the sustainable growth model and would like 
to applaud and appreciate the confidence placed in the company and its brands by the partners, 
students fraternity, parents, employees and stake holders.  This faith in us is instrumental and 
provides great motivation to drive the growth strategy forward and create long term value for all 
our stake holders.  

IT &ITeS SEGMENT  

The Information Technology (IT) and Information Technology enabled services (ITeS) industry has 
been one of the key driving forces fuelling India's economic growth and has evolved as a major 
contributor to India's GDP and plays a vital role in driving growth of the economy in terms of 
employment and revenue generation.  

IT &ITeS  sector continues to create significant employment opportunities in the economy and 
this is evident in the upswing of  hiring in IT sector in FY22.  

As you are aware, we have been into the IT Education and Training and we are currently 
witnessing a surge in offline training in the recent months as there is a growing demand for 
skilled manpower across the industries and this is where your company shall play a vital role.  

EDUCATION SEGMENT  
 

The role of education is to facilitate social and economic progress in the long run. Education 
improves functional and analytical ability and opens up opportunities for individuals and groups 
to achieve greater access to employment opportunities and livelihoods. 

As India holds an important place in the global education industry, there is still a lot of potential 
for further development and improvement in the education system.With more than 25% of 
India’s population in the age group of 0-14 years, India’s education sector is poised for a 
tremendous leap and with the inclusion of technology the education segment shall provide 
numerous opportunities for growth. 

 



 

Technology is emerging has a key factor in education segment in India and the education 
segment is witnessing a swift growth with large private institutions collaborating and sharing 
resources with the government to develop this sector.  

This growth is evident with the fact central government announcing and approving the “New 
India Literacy Programme” for the period FY 2022-27 to cover all the aspects of adult education 
to align with National Education Policy 2020 and Budget Announcements 2022-23. 

Skills and Knowledge are the engines for the economic growth and social development of any 
country and India is strongly marching towards to knowledge-based economy.  

OUR WAY FORWARD. 

As an education and training company, our segment was widely affected as the country 
witnessed a complete closure of offline classes during the first wave. However, the country 
adapted to the learnings and experiences from the first wave and the nation-wide vaccination 
drive conducted on war-footing, helped the country to come back to normalcy at a faster pace.  

Today, the conventional education and training segment is popularly known as the Edtech Sector 
as this new era of digital transformation brings in plethora of opportunities for growth.Needless 
to mention the digital transformation in education segment is for here to stay.  
 

In the coming financial year, we will continue to sharpen and augment our strategy as the basis 
for profitable growth. As technology and digital transformation continue to heighten its 
presence, it will only continue to increase the demand for skilled manpower across the industries 
and various sectors. With the boost in the economic activity, we shall continue to look for newer 
ways to sustainable and profitable growth.  
 

It is imperative for us to stick to our values and while focusing on our core area, your company 
will add new verticals with a consulting-led approach, based on innovation and outcomes.We 
have the opportunity to lean into our strengths to build the future for ourselves and our 
customers alike.  
 

While looking ahead, we are optimistic of the opportunities coming our way and look forward to 
share a year with new milestones.Before concluding, on behalf of my board of directors, 
management team of Keerti Knowledge and Skills limited, I want to thank you for your continued 
support, trust and confidence.  
 

I wish you and your families safety as well as good health.  
 
Keep challenging your limits!  
 
With warm regards,  
Sd/-  
Sudhakar Sonawane  
Managing Director  

 



 

 
NOTICE 

   
NOTICE is hereby given that the 23rdAnnual General Meeting of the members of  
Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited, will be held on Tuesday, 27th September,2022, at 11:00 
A.M.(IST)through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact 
the following businesses:  
  
ORDINARY BUSINESS:   
 

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the audited Standalone & Consolidated Financial 
Statement of the Company including the audited Balance Sheet as at 31stMarch, 2022, 
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash flow statement for the year ended together with 
the reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.  

 
2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane, Managing Director 

(DIN: 01689700), who is liable to retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for 
reappointment.  

 
3. To consider and approve the re-appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company to 

hold office for a further period of Five years until the conclusion of the 28thAnnual 
General Meeting and to fix their remuneration and to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139, 142 and all other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
[including any statutory amendment(s), modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for 
the time being in force] and pursuant to the recommendations of the Audit Committee 
and the Board of Directors of the Company, M/s. N K Mittal & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration no. 113281W), be and are hereby re-appointed as the 
“Statutory Auditors” of the Company for a further term of 5 (Five) consecutive years, 
commencing from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 
28thAnnual General Meeting (i.e., to conduct the Statutory Audit of the Company from 
the Financial Year 2022-23 upto the Financial Year 2026-27), at such remuneration  
agreed between the Board and Statutory Auditor.” 

SPECIAL BUSINESS:  
 

4. Re-appointment of Mr. SudhakarPandurangSonawane[DIN: 01689700] as the Chairman 
cum Managing Director: 



 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the followingresolution as anOrdinary 
Resolution: 

 
"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203and any 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof or the time being in force), read with 
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,Articles of Association and on the based on the 
recommendation made by Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board, the 
consent  of the members be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Sudhakar 
Pandurang Sonawane[DIN:01689700] as the Chairman cum Managing Director of the 
Company, for a further  period of 5 (Five) years with effect from 9th February, 2022 to 8th 
February, 2027, on such terms and conditions as mentioned in the agreement dated 18th 
January, 2022, the summaries of the same are mentioned as below:  

 

CATEGORY PARTICULARS 
Basic Salary Not exceeding Rs. 5,00,000/- per month 
Sitting Fees The Chairman cum Managing Director shall not be entitled to sitting 

fees for attending meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees 
thereof. 

General a) Contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation/Annuity 
Fund will be as per Scheme of the Company 
b) Gratuity payable shall be at a rate not exceeding 15 days salary for 
each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months 
as per Scheme of the Company.  
c) Encashment of unavailed leave at the end of the tenure or at 
specified intervals will be as per rules of the Company. 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT during the tenure of Mr. Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane 
[DIN: 01689700] as the Chairman cum Managing Director of the Company, the Company 
incurs a loss or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay to Mr. Sudhakar 
Pandurang Sonawane[DIN: 01689700]by way of salary, bonus and other allowances as a 
minimum remuneration but not exceeding the limits specified under section II of part 11 
of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, or such other limits as may be as may be 
agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company.” 

 



 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorised to alter and vary the terms and conditions of appointment and/ or remuneration, 
subject to limits as specified under section 197, read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company be 
and is hereby authorised to take necessary steps as may be required for re-appointment 
of Mr. Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane[DIN: 01689700]as  the Chairman cum Managing 
Director of the Company and file relevant e-Forms with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
[Registrar of Companies, Mumbai].” 

 
5. Re-appointment of Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar [DIN: 01689762] as the  Whole-

Time Director: 
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the followingresolution as anOrdinary 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203, Schedule V 
and otherapplicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remunerationof Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including 
anystatutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof forthe time being in force), 
recommendation made by Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board, the 
consent of members be and is hereby accorded  re-appoint of Mr. Pandurang Narayan 
Patekar[DIN: 01689762] as a Whole-time Director for a further period of 5 years w.e.f. 9th 
February, 2022 (From 09.02.2022 to 08.02.2027) on the remuneration and on such terms 
and conditions as set out below with liberty and authority to the Board of Directors to 
alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment from time to time within 
the scope of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, or any amendments thereto or any 
re-enactment thereof as may be agreed to between the Board of Directors and Mr. 
Pandurang Narayan Patekar.  

i. Remuneration: not exceeding Rs.2,00,000/- per monthor such higher amount as may be 
decided by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time.  

ii. Reimbursement of any other expenses properly incurred by him in accordance with 
rules of the Company. 

iii. Reimbursement of Medical Expenses & LTC as per the rules of the Company.  

iv. Other perquisites, allowances, benefits and amenities as per the service rules of the 
Company as applicable from time to time.  



 

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profit in any financial 
year, the Company shall pay to Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar[DIN: 01689762], in 
respect of such financial year, remuneration by way of salary, allowances, perquisites and 
other benefits as the Board of Directors may deem fit, subject to the limits prescribed 
herein and in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorised to alter and vary the terms and conditions of appointment and/ or remuneration, 
subject to limits as specified under section 197, read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Directors or Key Managerial Personnelof the Company be 
and is hereby authorised to take necessary steps as may be required for re-appointment 
of Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar [DIN: 01689762] as a Whole-time Director of the 
Company and file relevant e-Forms with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs [Registrar of 
Companies, Mumbai].” 

6. Re-appointment of Mr. Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit (DIN: 06770931) as an Independent 
Director for second term: 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 152, and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder (including 
any statutory modifications or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), read 
with Schedule IV of the Act and based on the recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, the consent of the members of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit, (DIN: 
06770931), as an Independent Director of the Company for second and final term of five 
years commencingfrom the date of members’ approval at this 23rd Annual General Meeting 
till the conclusion of 28th Annual General Meeting proposed to be held in the year 2027; 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company be and 
are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things which may be 
necessary for re-appointment of Mr. Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit, (DIN: 06770931)as an 
Independent Director of the Company.’ 

by order of the Board of Directors  
Place: Mumbai                                              

  PriyankaPandey 
Date:17/08/2022             Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

ACS: - A61342 



 

 
Regd. Office: 
26/202, Upper Floor, Anand Nagar,  
Vakola Bridge, Nehru Road,  
Santacruz East Mumbai-400051,   
Maharashtra, India   
 
Notes:-  

1. 1. In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India 
("MCA") issued General Circular Nos. 14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020, 02/2021, 19/2021 and 21/2021 
dated 8th April 2020, 13th April 2020, 5th May 2020, 13th January 2021, 8th December 2021, 
14th December 2021and 5th May, 2022, respectively, ("MCA Circulars") allowing, inter-alia, 
conduct of AGMs through Video Conferencing/Other Audio-Visual Means ("VC / OAVM") facility 
on or before 31st December 2022, in accordance with the requirements provided in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the MCA General Circular No. 20/2020. In compliance with these Circulars, provisions of 
the Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing 
Regulations"), the 23rdAGM of the Company is being conducted through VC / OAVM facility, 
which does not require physical presence of Members at a common venue. Electronic copy of the 
Annual Report for the financial year 2022 is being sent to all the members whose e-mail 
addresses are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) for communication 
purposes. For members who have not registered their e-mail address, hard copies of the Annual 
Report for the financial year 2022 are being sent in the permitted mode. In case any member is 
desirous of obtaining hard copy of the Annual Report for the financial year 2022 and Notice of 
the 23rd AGM of the Company, may send request to the Company’s e-mail address at 
cs@keerti.org , mentioning Folio No./DP ID and Client ID. 
 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is 
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a 
Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC 
/ OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for 
appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the 
Attendance Slip and Proxy Form are not annexed to this Notice. 
 

3. The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act, setting out material facts 
concerning the business of the Notice, is annexed hereto. The relevant details, pursuant to 
Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General 
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors seeking 
appointment/re-appointment at this AGM are also annexed. 
 

4. Book Closure: 
The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 
Tuesday, September 20th, 2022 to Tuesday, September 27th, 2022 (both days inclusive). 



 

 
5. As per Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be 

transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request 
received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks 
associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding shares 
in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. 
Members can contact the Company or Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents - M/s. Link 
Intime India Private Limited for assistance in this regard. 
 

6. To support the “Green Initiative”, Members who have not registered their email addresses are 
requested to register the same with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/their 
Depository Participants, in respect of shares held in physical/electronic mode, respectively. 
 

7. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, 
email address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number(PAN), mandates, 
nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank 
account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their Depository Participant in case the shares 
are heldin electronic form and to M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, in case the shares are 
held in physical form. 
 

8. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first holder 
in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote. 
 

9. Transfer of Unclaimed/Unpaid amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF): 
 
Members are requested to note that dividends not encashed or remaining unclaimed for a period 
of 7 (seven) years from the date of transfer to the Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account, shall be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”) established by the Central 
Government. Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act read with the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 
(“IEPF Rules”) as amended to date, all shares on which dividend has not been paid or claimed for 
seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred to IEPF Authority as notified by the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs.  
 
The Members/Claimants whose shares, unclaimed dividend, and debenture interest amount 
have been transferred to IEPF may claim the shares or apply for refund by making an application 
to IEPF Authority in Form IEPF 5 (available on www.iepf.gov.in). The Member/Claimant can file 
only one consolidated claim in a Financial Year as per the IEPF Rules. Members are requested to 
contact the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent to claim the unclaimed/ unpaid 
dividends at the following address: M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited. 
 

10. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any change of address 
immediately to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. Members holding shares in 
electronic form must send the advice about change in address to their respective Depository 
Participant only and not to the Company or the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 



 

 
11. Updation of Members’ Details: 

The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the 
Act requires the Company/ Registrar and Share Transfer Agent to record additional details of 
Members, including their PAN details, email address, bank details for payment of dividend, etc. A 
form for capturing these additional details is appended at the end of this Annual Report. 
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit the filled-in form to the 
Company or to its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. Members holding shares in electronic form 
are requested to submit the details to their respective Depository Participant. 
 

12. Nomination Facility: As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and Rule 19(1) of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, as amended, Members holding shares in 
physical form may file nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company’s Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent. In respect of shares held in dematerialized form, the nomination form 
may be filed with the respective Depository Participant. 
 

13. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be 
open for inspection by the Members by writing an e-mail to the Ms. Priyanka Pandey(CS) at 
cs@keerti.org. 
 

14. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with 
the Annual Report 2021-22 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose 
email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. Members may note that the 
Notice and the Annual Report 2021-22 will also be available on the Company’s website at 
www.keerti.org, on the website of the Stock Exchanges National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
at www.nseindia.com, and on the website of Depository. 
 

15. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning 
the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 
 

16. Shareholders present at the AGM through InstaMeet facility and who have not casted their vote 
on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting from 11.00 AM (IST) till the expiry of 
15 minutes after the AGM is over. Shareholders who have voted through remote e-voting prior to 
the AGM will be eligible to attend/participate in the AGM through Insta Meet. However, they will 
not be eligible to vote again during the meeting. 
 

17. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice. 
 
  



 

Instructions for Voting through electronics means: 
 
In compliance with Regulation 44, SEBI Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements, 2015, provisions of Section 
108 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide members facility 
to exercise their right to vote at the 23rdAnnual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means (“e-Voting”) and the 
items of business as detailed in this Notice may be transacted through e-voting services provided by Link Intime 
India Private Limited through instavote. 
 
The Members may cast their votes through instavote (“Remote E-voting”). 
 
Remote e-voting Instructions for Shareholders:  

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode can 
register directly with the depository or will have the option of accessing various ESP portals directly from their 
demat accounts. 

 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 

1. Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL 
1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz... https://eservices.nsdl.com either 

on a personal computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the "Beneficial 
Owner" icon under "Login"" which is available under 'IDeAS' section, this will prompt you to enter 
your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services under Value added services. Click on "Access to e-Voting" under e-Voting services 
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be re-directed to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period. 

2. If you are not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 
at https://eservices.nsdl.com Select "Register Online for IDeAS Portal" or click 
at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a personal computer or on a mobile. Once the home 
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is available under 
'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 
your sixteen-digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code 
as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 
2. Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, can login through their user id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL 
for users to login to Easi / Easiest 
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New 
System Myeasi. 



 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will 
have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be 
redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 
at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration.  

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat account number and 
PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on 
LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period. 
 

3. Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat mode) login through their depository participants 
You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant 
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period. 

 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form is given below: 
 
Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form as on the cut-off date for e-voting may 
register for e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under: 

 
1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 
 
2. Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: -  

 
A. User ID: Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio Number registered 
with the Company.  
B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have not updated their 
PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if 
applicable.  
C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your DP / 
Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)  
D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your 
DP/Company.  
 
*Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide 
their Folio number in ‘D’ above 

 
▶Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one 
special Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).  
▶Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated).  

 
3. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.  
4. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on ‘Submit’.  



 

 
 
Cast your vote electronically: 
 

1. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon.  
2. E-voting page will appear.  
3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If 

you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).  
4. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box will be 

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and 
accordingly modify your vote.  

 
Guidelines for Institutional shareholders: 
 
Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the e-
voting system of LIIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / 
Corporate Body’. They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority 
letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised representative(s) 
in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.  
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders: 

 
Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request 
at enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000. 

 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 
 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 
Login type  Helpdesk details  

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free 
no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30  

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
022- 23058738 or 22- 23058542-43.  

 
 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the password:  

 



 

If an Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password 
or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on the e-Voting website of Link 
Intime: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

 
o Click on‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’  
o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on “SUBMIT”. 
 

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. 
Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the particulars of the 
Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above. 
The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@!#$&*), at least one 
numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter.  

 
User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is Event No + Folio 
Number registered with the Company 
 
 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the password:  
 
Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password 
option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants website. 
 

 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep your password confidential.  

 For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice. 

 During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the 
resolution(s) for a particular “Event”. 

 
GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS: 
 
 

1. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the Member / 
beneficial owner as on the cut off date i.e. September 20, 2022. 
 

2. The facility for e-voting shall also be available during the AGM. Members who have already cast their vote 
by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote 
at the AGM. Only those Members who attend the AGM and have not cast their votes through remote e-
voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so will be allowed to vote through the e-voting facility 
available at the AGM. 
 

3. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes its Member after the sending of Notice of 
the AGM and holds shares as on the cut Notice of the AGM and holds shares as on the cutoff date for 
voting i.e. September 20, 2022, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request to 
enotices@linkintime.co.in. However, if he/she is already registered with LIIPL for remote e-voting then 
he/she can use his/her existing User ID and password for casting the vote. 
 



 

4. Mr. Deep Shukla, Practising Company Secretary (FCS No. 5652 CP. No. 5364) has been appointed as the 
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and ensure that the voting process at the AGM is conducted 
in a fair and transparent manner. 
 

5. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unblock the votes cast through remote e-
voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, 
not later than forty eight hours of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the 
total votes cast in favour/against if any, to the Chairperson or a person authorized in writing, who shall 
countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 
 

6. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the website of the Company 
www.keerti.organd on the website of Linkintime at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and shall also be 
communicated to NSE Limited. 

 
Process and manner for attending the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet: 
 
1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in 
 
▶ Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: -  

 
A. Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No 

 
• Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
• Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID 

followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
• Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with the 

Company  
 
B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their 

PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/   
Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.  
 
C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number.  
 
D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company.  

 
▶Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the meeting). 
 
 
Please refer the instructions (annexure) for the software requirements and kindly ensure to install the same on 
the device which would be used to attend the meeting. Please read the instructions carefully and participate in 
the meeting. You may also call upon the InstaMeet Support Desk for any support on the dedicated number 
provided to you in the instruction/ InstaMEET website. 
 
 
Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet: 



 

 
1. Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 3 days in advance i.e. 

on or before Saturday, September 24, 2022 with the company on the cs@keerti.org created for the general 
meeting. 

2. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the client.  
3. Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting. 
4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panelist, via active chat-board during the meeting. 
5. Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panelist by switching on video 

mode and audio of your device. 
 
Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the name 
and serial number for speaking. 
 
Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet: 
 
Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ members 
who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under: 
  
1. On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote” 
2. Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ 

registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET and click on 'Submit'.  
3. After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ 

Against” for voting.  
4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares 

(which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against'. 
5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on 

“Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to 
change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote.  

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote 
subsequently. 

 

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing 
so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted 
through Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual 
General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting.  

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through 
broadband for better experience. 

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network.  It is 
therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 



 

 
In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to 
instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175. 

 
 

 EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013; 
 
Item 3: 
 
The Members of the Company on 25thSeptember 2017, appointed M/s. N K Mittal & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration no. 113281W) as the statutory auditors of the Company, to 
hold office till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in financial year 2021-22. M/s. N 
K Mittal & Associates will complete their present term on conclusion of this AGM, in terms of the said 
approval and Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014.  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’), on the recommendation of the Audit Committee 
(‘the Committee’), recommended to the approval of the Members for re-appointment of M/s. N K Mittal 
& Associatesas the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a further term of 5 (Five) consecutive years, 
commencing from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 28thAnnual 
General Meeting (i.e., to conduct the Statutory Audit of the Company from the Financial Year 2022-23 
upto the Financial Year 2026-27), at such remuneration  agreed between the Board and Statutory Auditor.  
 
The Committee considered various parameters like capability to serve a diverse and complex business 
landscape as that of the Company, audit experience in the Company’s operating segments, market 
standing of the firm, clientele served, technical knowledge etc., and found M/s. N K Mittal & Associates., 
to be best suited to handle the scale, diversity and complexity associated with the audit of the financial 
statements of the Company. 
 
M/s. N K Mittal & Associates, have given their consent to act as the Auditors of the Company and have 
confirmed that the said appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the conditions prescribed under 
Sections 139 and 141 of the Act. 
 
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their relatives, is interested in 
this Resolution. 
 
The Board recommends this Resolution for your approval. 
 
 
 Items 4:-  
 
Re-appointment of Mr. Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane[DIN: 01689700] as the Chairman cum 
Managing Director 
 



 

At the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on January 18,2022 on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Mr. 
SudhakarPandurangSonawane[DIN: 01689700] was re-appointed as the Chairman cum Managing 
Director designated as an  Executive Director of the Company for another period of five years, w.e.f 9th 
February, 2022 to 8th February, 2027 on such terms and conditions as mentioned in the agreement dated 
18th January, 2022, the summaries of the same are mentioned as below: 

 

CATEGORY PARTICULARS 
Basic Salary Not exceeding Rs. 5,00,000/- per month 
Sitting Fees The Managing Director shall not be entitled to sitting fees for attending 

meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees thereof. 
General a) Contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation/Annuity 

Fund will be as per Scheme of the Company 
b) Gratuity payable shall be at a rate not exceeding 15 days salary for 
each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months 
as per Scheme of the Company.  
c) Encashment of unavailed leave at the end of the tenure or at 
specified intervals will be as per rules of the Company. 

 
“A brief resume of Mr. Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane is provided in the annexure to the Notice. This 
resolution is being proposed  in view of the relevant provisions of Schedule V to the Act for payment of 
minimum remuneration in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits. Mr. Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane 
is interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice with regard to his re-appointment. 
 
Relatives of Mr. Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane may be deemed to be interested in the resolution to the 
extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Company. Save andexcept the above, none of the other 
Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested,financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 
 
The Board commends the special resolution set out in Item No. 4 for approval by shareholders 

 
Item No.5 

 
Re-appointment of Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar [DIN: 01689762] as the Whole-Time Director: 

At the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on January 18,2022 on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar 
[DIN: 01689762] was re-appointed as the Whole-Time Directordesignated as an  Executive Director of 
the Company for another period of five years, w.e.f 9th February, 2022 to 8th February, 2027 on the 
terms of remuneration mentioned hereinbelow, with powers to the Board to make such variation or 
increase therein as may be thought fit from time to time, but within the ceiling/s laid down inthe Act or 
any statutory amendment or relaxation thereof: 
 



 

i. Remuneration: not exceeding Rs.2,00,000/- per monthor such higher amount as may be 
decided by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time.  

ii. Reimbursement of any other expenses properly incurred by him in accordance with 
rules of the Company. 

iii. Reimbursement of Medical Expenses & LTC as per the rules of the Company.  

iv. Other perquisites, allowances, benefits and amenities as per the service rules of the 
Company as applicable from time to time.  

A brief resume of Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar is provided in the annexure to the Notice. This 
resolution is being proposed in view of the relevant provisions of Schedule V to the Act for payment of 
minimum remuneration in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits. 
 
Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar is interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice with 
regard to his re-appointment. Relatives of Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar may be deemed to be 
interested in the resolution to the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Company. Save and except 
the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, 
in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution   

 
The Board commends the special resolution set out in Item No. 5 for approval by shareholders. 
 

 
Item No.6 

 
Re-appointment of Mr. Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit (DIN: 06770931) as an Independent Director for 
second term: 

The Members through EGM held on 30thMarch, 2017 have appointed Mr. Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 
(DIN:06770931)as an Independent Director to hold office for 5 (five) consecutive years for a term upto 29th March, 
2022. Accordingly, the tenure of Mr. Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit, as an Independent Director was expired on 29th 
March, 2022. In terms of provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of the Company shall recommend to the Board of the Directors, the appointment/ reappointment of a 
Director. In terms of provisions of section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, an independent director shall hold 
office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for reappointment 
for the second and final term on passing of a special resolution by the Shareholders of the Company and 
disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report., the Independent Directors shall be appointed by the Board 
of Directors of the Company, based on the nomination received from Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
of the Company, constituted by the Board, in accordance with Applicable Law the Independent Director(s) to be so 
appointed shall be persons of high standing, good repute and widely acknowledged as experts in their respective 
field, which the Board deems beneficial to the Company. The Company has received the consent from Mr. 
Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit to act as the Director in the prescribed Form DIR-2 under Section 152(5) of the Act 
and Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 along with the declaration 



 

on criteria of Independence as per Section 149(6) of the Act. After taking into account the performance 
evaluation, during his first term of five years and considering the knowledge, acumen, expertise and experience in 
respective fields and the substantial contribution made by Mr. Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohitduring his tenure as an 
Independent Director since his appointment, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 
18th January, 2022 has considered, approved and recommended the re-appointment of Mr. Rajvirendra Singh 
Rajpurohit as an Independent Directors for a second term of five years with effect from 30th March, 2022, to the 
Board of Directors for their approval. The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 18th March, 2022 has approved 
the proposal for reappointment of Mr. Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit as an Independent Director for a second term 
of five consecutive years with effect from 30th March, 2022. The Board recommends the Resolution for approval of 
the Members as a Special Resolution as set out in the item no. 6 of the notice. Except Mr. Rajvirendra Singh 
Rajpurohit, being the appointee, no other Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 
respective relatives is/ are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution. 

 
Annexure to Notice 

Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting 
[In pursuance of Clause 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 

Regulations, 2015] 
 

Name of Director Mr. 
SudhakarPandurangSonawane 

 

Mr. Pandurang 
Narayan 
Patekar 

Mr. Rajvirendra 
Singh Rajpurohit 

DIN 01689700 01689762 06770931 
Date of Birth 11/03/1973 10/12/1970 05/04/1989 
Actual date of 
Appointment 

29/04/1999 09/07/2001 09/02/2017 

Expertise in Specific 
Functional Area 

Business Administration 
 

Business 
Administration 

 

Practising 
Company 

Secretary having 
experience in 
more than 10 

years. 
Qualification BA, MBA SSC B.Com, M.Com, 

CS 
Relationships 

between directors 
inter-se 

Promoter - - 

Directorships held in 
other listed 

companies (As on 
March 31, 2022) 

--- ---- ---- 

Chairmanships/ 
Memberships of the 
Committees of the 

Nil Nil Nil 



 

Board of Directors of 
other listed 

companies (As on 
March 31, 2022) 

Terms and conditions 
of 

Appointment/ Re-
appointment 

Managing Director for further 
period of 5 years with effect 

from 9th February, 2022 

Whole Time 
Director for the 
further period 
of 5 years with 
effect from 9th 

February , 2022  

Independent 
Director for the 

further  period of 
5 years with 
effect from 

March 30, 2022 
Shareholding of 

Directors 
(As on March 31, 

2022) 

61,25,290 0 0 

 
Board’s Report 

  
To, 
The Members, 
Keerti Knowledge & Skills Limited 
 
Your Directors are pleased to present their 23rdAnnual Report on the state of affairs of the 
Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts and the Auditors’ Report of Keerti 
Knowledge & Skills Limited [“the Company’] for the year ended March 31st, 2022.  
  
Financial Results 
 
The summarized financial performance (Standalone & Consolidated) of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2022 is given below:  

[Amount in INR]  
 

Particulars 
Standalone Financial Statement Consolidated  Financial Statement 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Revenue from 
Operations and 
other income  

3,52,31,666 1,78,84,285 4,91,62,811 12,755,461 

Total Expenditure  5,61,01,532.66 2,01,63,904 9,04,37,924 49,138,040 
Profit before 
exceptional and 
extraordinary items 
and tax  

(2,08,69,867) (22,79,619) (4,12,75,113) (36,382,579) 



 

Adjustments for 
extraordinary / 
exceptional items  

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Profit Before Tax  (2,08,69,867) (22,79,619) (4,12,75,113) (36,382,579) 
Less:  Tax 
Expenses:   

    

- Current Tax  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
- Short / (Excess) 
provision of 
previous year  

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

- Deferred Tax 
(Credit)/charge 

2090.00 748.00 1,12,000 214,449.86 

Profit After 
Tax /Total  
Comprehensive 
Income/ Loss 

(2,08,71,957) (2,280,367) (4,12,39,113) (36,169,625) 

Earnings per equity 
share (Amt. per 
share)  

    

- Basic  (2.05) (0.22) (4.05) (3.55) 
- Diluted  (2.05) (0.22) (4.05) (3.55) 

  
Review of Operations 
 
Standalone: 
During the year under review, the Standalone total Income was Rs. 3,52,31,666/-as against  
Rs.17,884,285/-for the corresponding previous year. 
 
Total Comprehensive loss for the period was Rs.2,08,71,957/-as against the loss of Rs. 
2,280,367/- in the corresponding previous year 
 
Consolidated: 
During the year under review, the consolidated total Income was Rs.4,91,62,811 /-as against Rs. 
12,755,461/-for the corresponding previous year. 
 
Total Comprehensive consolidated loss for the period was Rs.4,12,39,113/- as againstthe loss of 
Rs. 36,169,625/-in the corresponding previous year 
 
Transfer to Reserves 



 

 
This year Company does not have enough profit to transfer in reserve. 
  
Dividend  
 
Due to loss incurred by the Company, your Directors have not recommended any dividend for 
the year under review. 
  
State of Affairs and Future Outlook 
 
 
COVID-19 and its impact: 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic has led to the unprecedented healthcrisis and has disrupted economic 
activities and global tradewhile weighing on consumer sentiments. During the year underreview, 
the nation experienced high severity and mortality ofcitizens brought by the second wave of the 
ongoing COVID-19pandemic. With intermittent nationwide lockdowns anddisruption in regular 
economic activities and the education segment as the government is yet to lift the restrictions for 
Schools, Colleges, Coaching& Vocational Training centres in Mumbai & Thane where we have 
large presence. The management has assessed the impact of the lockdown & consequent 
economic slowdown on business operations, revenues, cash flows and other financial parameters 
as on 31stMarch, 2022. However, the Companydealt with the pandemic by continuing to focus on 
operationalexcellence, marketing strategies, and keeping its employeeand community at the core 
of it.The health and safety of employees and the communitiesin which the Company operates 
continue to be theforemost priority of the Company. To mitigate the risks andchallenges faced by 
the Company during the pandemic, theCompany enhanced safety and hygiene norms at 
offices,implemented work from home, staggered shift timings forsafety of employees and 
leveraged digital platforms for itsday-to-day operations. 

 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
 
The Management Discussion and Analysis as required in terms of the ListingRegulations is 
annexed to the report as Annexure I and is incorporated herein by reference and forms an 
integral part of this report. 
  
Share Capital 
 

 
As on 31st March, 2022, the Authorised share capital of the Company is Rs. 11,00,00,000/- 
(Rupees ElevenCrore only) divided into 1,10,00,000 (One Crore Ten Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs 10/-



 

(Rupees Ten only) each; and Issued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital of the Company is Rs. 
10,18,90,980/- (Rupees Ten Crore Eighteen Lacs NinetyThousand Nine Hundred Eighty only) 
divided into 1,01,89,098 (One Crore One Lakh EightyNine Thousand Ninety Eight) Equity Shares of 
Rs. 10.00/- (Rupees Ten only) each.  
  
The Company has only one class of equity shares having at par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each 
holder of equity shares entitled to one vote per share.  
  
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
 
 Inductions / Appointment or Re-appointment of Director: 
 
1. In accordance with section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of Articles of 
Association of the Company Mr. SudhakarPandurangSonawane(DIN: 01689700), 
ManagingDirector of the Company, retires by rotation and being eligible; offers himself for re-
appointment at the forthcoming 23rdAnnual General Meeting. The Board recommends the said 
reappointment for shareholders’ approval. 
 
2. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination andRemuneration Committee and approval 
of the same by the Board at its meeting held on 18thJanuary, 2022,  Mr. 
SudhakarPandurangSonawane[DIN: 01689700] being re-appointedas the Chairman cum 
Managing Directorof the company for a further period of 5 years w.e.f. February 09, 2022, 
resolution in this behalfis set out at Item No 4 of the Notice of AnnualGeneral Meeting, for 
Members’ approval. 
 
3.Based on the recommendation of the Nomination andRemuneration Committee and approval 
of the same by the Board at its meeting held on 18thJanuary, 2022,  Mr. Pandurang Narayan 
Patekar[DIN: 01689762] being re-appointedas the Whole-time Directorof the company for a 
further period of 5 years w.e.f. February 09, 2022, resolution in this behalfis set out at Item No 5 
of the Notice of AnnualGeneral Meeting, for Members’ approval. 
 

 
4. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination andRemuneration Committee and approval 
of the same by the Board at its meeting held on 18thJanuary, 2022,  Mr. Rajvirendra Rajpurohit 
[DIN: 06770931] being re-appointedas the Independent Directorof the company for a further 
period of 5 years w.e.f. March 30, 2022, resolution in this behalfis set out at Item No 6 of the 
Notice of AnnualGeneral Meeting, for Members’ approval. 

 
5. During the year under review Mr. Mahipal Singh Chouhanhas resigned from the post of 
Company Secretary w.e.f. September 30, 2021 and Ms. PriyankaDharmeshPandey was appointed 
as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. October 21, 2021. 
 
 



 

All the directors of the Company have confirmed that they satisfy the fit and proper criteria as 
prescribed under the applicable regulations and that they are not disqualified from being 
appointed as directors in terms of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Further, Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company are: 
 
Sr. No. Name of KMP Designation 

1. Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar Whole-time Director  
2. Mr. SudhakarPandurangSonawane Managing Director 
3. Mr. VinodNamdeoNarsale Chief Financial Officer 
4. *Ms. PriyankaDharmeshPandey Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
   

* Appointed w.e.f. 21st October, 2021 
 
 

Declaration by Independent Directors 
 
 
The Company has received the necessary declaration fromeach Independent Director in 
accordance with Section 149(7)of the Act and Regulations 16(1)(b) and 25(8) of the SEBI 
ListingRegulations, that he/she meets the criteria of independence aslaid out in Section 149(6) of 
the Act and Regulations 16(1)(b) ofthe SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 
In the opinion of the Board, there has been no change in thecircumstances which may affect their 
status as IndependentDirectors of the Company and the Board is satisfied of theintegrity, 
expertise, and experience (including proficiencyin terms of Section 150(1) of the Act and 
applicable rulesthereunder) of all Independent Directors on the Board. Further,in terms of Section 
150 read with Rule 6 of the Companies(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014,as amended, Independent Directors of the Company haveincluded their names in the data 
bank of Independent Directorsmaintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. 
 
Board Meetings 
 
Dates for Board Meetings are well decided in advance and communicated to the Board and the 
intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement. The information as required under Regulation 17(7) read 
with Schedule II Part A of the LODR is made available to the Board. The agenda and explanatory 
notes are sent to the Board in advance. The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all 
laws applicable to the Company. The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly 
financial results and other items on the agenda and also on the occasion of the Annual General 
Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Shareholders. Additional meetings are held, when necessary.  
 



 

Further, Committees of the Board usually meet on the same day of formal Board Meeting, or 
whenever the need arises for transacting business. The recommendations of the Committees are 
placed before the Board for necessary approval and noting. 
 
During the year 07 (Seven) Board Meetings were held during the year ended 31st March, 2022, 
the dates which are 2nd April 2021,21st June, 2021, 12thAugust, 2021, 27th August, 2021, 21st 
October 2021, 1st November 2021, 18th January, 2022. 
 
Attendance details of Directors for the year ended March 31, 2022 are given below: 
 

Name of the Directors Category No. of Board 
Meetings attended 

Mr.SudhakarPSonawane Managing Director 07 
Mr.PandurangNPatekar Whole-time Director 07 
Mr. RajvirendraRajpurohit Independent Director 07 
Mr. ArchanaSSaini Independent Director 07 

Mr. Manish H Chandak Independent Director 07 

Mr. Tanul R Sonawane Non-Executive, Non-
Independent Director 

07 

 
Discussions with Independent Directors 
 
The Board’s policy is to regularly have separate meetings with Independent Directors, to update 
them on all business related issues, new initiatives and changes in the industry specific market 
scenario. At such meetings, the Executive Directors and other Members of the Management 
make presentations on relevant issues. 
 
The policy for FamiliarisationProgramme for Independent Directors is available on our website 
www.keerti.org. 
 
Board Evaluation 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement/ SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own 
performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its 
Committees. The Directors expressed satisfaction with the evaluation process.  
 
Composition of Audit Committee 
 
Your Company has formed an Audit Committee as per the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
All members of the Audit Committee possess strong knowledge of accounting and financial 
management.  



 

 
The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and provide an effective supervision 
of the Management’s financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with 
the highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting. The Committee 
oversees the work carried out in the financial reporting process by the Management, the 
statutory auditor and notes the processes and safeguards employed by each of them. 
 
The Committee met 5 (Five) times during the year, the details of which are given in the Corporate 
Governance Report along with composition of the Committee and their attendance. 
 
 
Composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
 
Your Company has formed a Nomination & Remuneration Committee to lay down norms for 
determination of remuneration of the executive as well as non-executive directors and 
executives at all levels of the Company. The Nomination & Remuneration committee has been 
assigned to approve and settle the remuneration package with optimum blending of monetary 
and non-monetary outlay. 

 
The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the year, the details of which are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report along with composition of the Committee and their attendance. 
 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy 
 
The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to 
remuneration of Directors. This policy also lays down criteria for selection and appointment of 
Board Members. The Board of Directors is authorized to decide Remuneration to Executive 
Directors. The Remuneration structure comprises of Salary and Perquisites. Salary is paid to 
Executive Directors within the Salary grade approved by the Members. The Nomination & 
Remuneration committee has been assigned to approve and settle the remuneration package 
with optimum blending of monetary and non-monetary outlay. 
 
In terms of requirements prescribed under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy inter-alia providing the terms for appointment and 
payment of remuneration to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. 
 
During the year, there have been no changes to the Policy. The same is annexed to this report as 
Annexure II and is available on our website www.keerti.org. 
 
Details of remuneration paid to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report along with shareholding in a Company. 
 
Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
 



 

Your Board has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee to specifically look into the 
mechanism of redressal of grievances of shareholders etc. The Committee reviews Shareholder’s 
/ Investor’s complaints like non-receipt of Annual Report, physical transfer/ 
transmission/transposition, split/ consolidation of share certificates, issue of duplicate share 
certificates, etc. This Committee is also empowered to consider and resolve the grievance of 
other stakeholders of the Company including security holders. 
 
The Committee met 04(Four) times during the year, the details of which are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report along with composition of the Committee and their attendance.  
 
Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
 
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) & 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the 
Company hereby confirm that: 
 

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 
 

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit 
and loss of the company for that period; 
 

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
 

(e) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and 
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 
 

(f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures 
 
The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 in respect of 
employees of the Company, is enclosed as Annexure III and forms part of this Report. 

 
Further, no employee of the Company is earning more than the limits as prescribed pursuant to 
Section 197 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 in respect of employees of the Company. 



 

 
Further, the names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn are disclosed in 
Annexure IV and forms part of this Report. 

 
Annual Return: 
 
Pursuant to Notification dated 28th August, 2020 issued bythe Ministry of Corporate Affairs as 
published in the Gazetteof India on 28th August, 2020, the details forming part of theextract of 
Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is not required tobe annexed herewith to this report. However, 
the AnnualReturn will be made available at the website of the Companyat: www.keerti.org.  
 
Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies 
 
 
The Company has two wholly owned subsidiary Company, namely, Keerti Institute India Private 
Limited (KIIPL) and Keerti Tutorials India Private Limited (KTIPL).   
 
The Statement AOC-1 pursuant to the provisions of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 
2013read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Subsidiary Company 
isenclosed as Annexure V and forms part of this Report. 
 
Statutory Auditors’ and Auditors’ Report 
 
The Members of the Company on 25thSeptember 2017, appointed M/s. N K Mittal & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 113281W) as the statutory auditors of the 
Company, to hold office till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in financial 
year 2021-22. M/s. N K Mittal & Associates,will complete their present term on conclusion of this 
AGM, in terms of the said approval and Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read 
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.  

 
The Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’), on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee (‘the Committee’), recommended to the approval of the Members for  re-appointment 
of M/s. N K Mittal & Associates as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a further term of 5 
(Five) consecutive years, commencing from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the 
conclusion of 28thAnnual General Meeting (i.e., to conduct the Statutory Audit of the Company 
from the Financial Year 2022-23 upto the Financial Year 2026-27), at such remuneration  agreed 
between the Board and Statutory Auditor.  

 
The Committee considered various parameters like capability to serve a diverse and complex 
business landscape as that of the Company, audit experience in the Company’s operating 
segments, market standing of the firm, clientele served, technical knowledge etc., and found M/s. 
N K Mittal & Associates,., to be best suited to handle the scale, diversity and complexity 
associated with the audit of the financial statements of the Company. 

 



 

M/s. N K Mittal & Associates, have given their consent to act as the Auditors of the Company and 
have confirmed that the said appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the conditions 
prescribed under Sections 139 and 141 of the Act. 

 
Hence, the Notice convening in the ensuing 23rd AGM contained a resolution forre-appointment 
of Statutory Auditors for their approval.  

 
Auditors Report as issued by M/s. N K Mittal & Associates., Chartered Accountants, Auditors of 
the Company is self-explanatory and need not call for any explanation by your Board. 
 
Secretarial Audit  
 
In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, M/s. Deep Shukla & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries, have been appointed Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The 
Secretarial Audit Report is enclosed as Annexure VI to this report.  
 
Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 
 
M/s. Deep Shukla & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, have been appointed to give 
Annual Secretarial Compliance Certificate. The Annual Compliance Certificate is enclosed as 
Annexure VII to this report.  
 
Internal Audit & Controls 
 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial 
statement. The Audit Committee of the Board periodically reviews the internal control systems 
with the management, Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors. Significant internal audit findings 
are discussed and follow-ups are taken thereon. 
 
Further, Ms. GeetaBasantTilwanis acting as an Internal Auditor of the Company. 
 
Employees’ Stock Option Plan  
 
The Company has not provided stock options to any employee. 
 
Vigil Mechanism 
 
In pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil 
Mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns has been established. The 
Vigil Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.keerti.org. 
The employees of the Company are made aware of the said policy at the time of joining the 
Company. 
 



 

Risk Management Policy 
 
The Company has laid down the procedure to inform the Board about the risk assessment and 
minimization procedures. These procedures are reviewed by the Board annually to ensure that 
there is timely identification and assessment of risks, measures to mitigate them, and 
mechanisms for their proper and timely monitoring and reporting.  
 
Corporate Governance Report 
 
We ensure that, we evolve and follow the corporate governance guidelines and best practices 
sincerely, not only to boost long-term shareholder value, but also to respect minority rights. We 
consider it as our inherent responsibility to disclose timely and accurate information regarding 
our operations and performance, as well as the leadership and governance of the Company. 
 
Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, the Corporate Governance Report along with the Certificate 
from a Practicing Chartered Accountants, regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance, is annexed as Annexure VIII and forms part of this Report. 
 
Deposits 
 
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any fixed deposits during the year under review 
under Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. There are no unclaimed deposits, unclaimed / 
unpaid interest, refunds due to the deposit holders or to be deposited to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund as on March 31, 2022. 
 
Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments Under Section 186 
 
Particulars of Loans, Guarantees given and Investments made during the year covered under the 
provisions ofSection 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial 
Statements. 
 
Related Party Transactions 
 
All Related Party transactions that were entered into during the financial year under reference 
were on the arm’slength basis and were in ordinary course of business and in compliance with 
the applicable provisions of theCompanies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Thereare no materially significant related party 
transactions between the Company and the Promoters, Directors, KeyManagerial Personnel, 
Subsidiaries, relatives or other designated persons, which may have a potential conflict withthe 
interest of the Company at large. Accordingly, particulars of contracts or arrangements with 
related partiesreferred to in Section 188(1) along with the justification for entering into such 
contract or arrangement in form AOC-2in terms of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to theCompany. 
 



 

All Related Party Transactions were placed before the Audit Committee and have been approved 
by the Board.Omnibus approval of Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions that are 
foreseen and repetitive in nature. 
 
Your Company has formulated a policy on related party transactions, which is also available on 
Company’s websitewww.keerti.org.  
 
The details of the related party transactions as per Accounting Standard 18 are set out in the 
Significant Accounting policies part of this report. 

 
Conservation of Energy, Research and Development, Technology Absorption and Foreign 
Exchange 
 
A. Conservation of Energy:  

We continue to strengthen our energy conservation efforts. We are always in lookout for 
energy efficient measures for operation and value conservation of energy through usage 
of latest technologies for quality of services. Although the equipments used by the 
Company being in the business of trading and marketing of agricultural inputs are not 
energy sensitive by their very nature, still the Company is making best possible efforts for 
conservation of energy, which assures that the computers and all 
other equipments purchased by the Company strictly adhere to environmental standards, 
and they make optimum utilization of energy.  

  
The Company has also put in place the continuous process of identifying and replacing in 
a phased manner, the machinery used like Computers, Air Conditioners and UPS etc., 
which are low in efficiency.  

  
 
B. Research and Development (R&D)  

 The Company believes that in order to improve the quality and standards of services, the 
Company should have a progressive Research and Development Process, which should 
keep on increasing along with the scale of operations of the Company.   

  
C. Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation  

In this era of competition, in order to maintain and increase the clients and customers, we 
need to provide best quality services to our clients and customers at minimum cost, which 
is not possible without innovation, and adapting to the latest technology available in the 
market for providing the services. The management of your Company is focused on the 
ongoing process of technology up gradation, and reinvention of business model of your 
Company, as and when required.  

  



 

D. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outflow  
During the year under review, there was no earning or outgoing in foreign exchange.  

 
Cost Audit 
 
As per the Cost Audit Orders and in terms of the provisions of Section 148 and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, Cost Audit is not applicable to our Company.  
 
Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) 
 
Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, every company having net worth of rupees 
five hundred croreor more, or turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of 
rupees five crore or more during anyfinancial year shall constitute a Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board. Your Company doesnot fall under the provisions of 
aforesaid Section; therefore, CSR Committee has not been constituted. 
 
Obligation of Company Under The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
 
In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act The Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been notified on 
9th December, 2013. Under the said Act every company is required to set up an Internal 
Complaints Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment at work place of any 
women employee.  
 
The Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace 
and has set up Committee for implementation of said policy. During the year Company has not 
received any complaint of harassment. 
 
Secretarial Standards 
 
The Company has in place proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of the 
applicable secretarial standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and such 
systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

 
Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 
 
There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals 
which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 
 
Material Changes and Commitments Affecting the Financial Position of the Company: 
 



 

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which 
the financial statements relate and the date of the report. 
 
Acknowledgement 
 
The Directors would like to thank all shareholders, customers, bankers, suppliers and everybody 
else with whose help, cooperation and hard work the Company is able to achieve the results. The 
Directors would also like to place on record their appreciation of the dedicated efforts put in by 
the employees of the Company.              

 
 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited  
 
 
SudhakarSonawane  PandurangPatekar 

Place: Mumbai        Managing Director  Whole-time Director  
Date: 17/08/2022    DIN:01689700   DIN:01689762 

 
Regd. Office: 
26/202, Upper Floor, Anand Nagar,  
Vakola Bridge, Nehru Road,  
Santacruz East Mumbai-400051,   
Maharashtra, India   



 

Annexure – I 

 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

 
 

Industry Overview: 
 
The objective of this report is to convey the Management’sperspective on the educational 
department and IT industry, aswell as strategy, operating and financial performance, 
materialdevelopments,risks and opportunities and internal control systems and theiradequacy in 
the Company during the FY 2021-22. This should beread in conjunction with the Company’s 
financial statements,the schedules and notes thereto and other informationincluded elsewhere 
in the Integrated Report. The Company’sfinancial statements have been prepared in accordance 
withIndian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) complying with therequirements of the Companies 
Act, 2013, as amended andregulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia 
(‘SEBI’) from time to time. 

The IT industry accounted for approximately 7.4% of India's GDP in 2022. According to STPI 
(Software Technology Park of India), software exports by the IT companies connected to it, stood 
at Rs. 1.20 lakh crore (US$ 16.29 billion) in the first quarter of FY22. Below mentioned are the 
market overview as published in www.ibef.org.; 

According to the National Association of Software and Service Companies (Nasscom), the Indian 
IT industry's revenue is expected to touch US$ 227 billion in FY22 from US$ 196 billion in FY21. In 
January 2022, Google announced plans to invest US$ 1 billion in India's BhartiAirtel Ltd. to push 
India's digital ecosystem. 

-The government introduced the STP Scheme, which is a 100% export-oriented scheme for the 
development and export of computer software, including export of professional services using 
communication links or physical media.   

-The Indian government inaugurated five National Institute of Electronics & Information 
Technology (NIELIT) Centres, in three North Eastern states to boost availability of training centres 
and employment opportunities.  

- Indian IT spend is expected to maintain robust 7.7 per cent growth in 2022 as compared to 2021 
growth rate of 21.2 percent.The global IT spending is projected to reach $4.5 trillion in 2022, an 
increase of 3 percent from 2021, according to the latest forecast by Gartner This report is as 
published in Business Standard dated. 15th July 2022.  

 



 

-According to Union Budget 2022-23, the government allocated Rs. 88,567.57 crore (US$ 11.58 
billion) for IT and telecom sector. 

-According to Union Budget 2021-22, the government allocated Rs. 54,873.66 crore (US$ 7.53 
billion) for Department of School Education and Literacy, compared with Rs. 59,845 crore (US$ 
8.56 billion) in Union Budget 2020-21. 

-The Indian Government promote the IT sector byinaugurating five National Institute of 
Electronics & Information Technology (NIELIT) Centres, in three North Eastern states to boost 
availability of training centres and employment opportunities. 

Indian IT's core competencies and strengths have attracted significant investment from major 
countries and companies as India is the topmost offshoring destination for IT companies across 
the world. Source is www.ibef.org 

Hence, there is a growing demand for IT professionals and also significant skill gap for critical IT 
skills. As it may be an appropriate time for upskilling and reskilling of existing staff, however, 
there is an immense opportunity for the students who aspire to be fetched in the IT Industry.  

 

Business Overview: 
 
 
The current crisis has been instrumental in triggering structural changes and has established new 
ways of working in the business environment. It was threeyears of swift changes in education and 
segment too with introduction of new policies and most importantly the radical change from 
offline learning to digital learning. It is important to note that the students have adapted well to 
this digital transformation. Now we are providing online as well as offline classes for the students 
on their demands.  
 
The Company ensures that all its employees remain competent through education, skills, training 
and experience as necessary. The Company has had cordial relations between the management 
and employees and an atmosphere of harmonious working to achieve the business objectives of 
the Company throughout the year. The Company is poised to motivate each of its employees to 
perform to the fullest extent possible and to appropriately reward their excellence. 
 
 
Covid-19 Impact on Business Outlook: 
 
Global growth is projected to slow-down from an estimated 6.1% in 2021 to 3.6% in 2022—0.8 
percentage-point lower than what was envisioned in the last World Economic Outlook (WEO) of 



 

January 2022, largely reflecting forecast markdowns in USA and China. In USA, a revised 
assumption of removing the Build Back Better fiscal policy package from the baseline, earlier 
withdrawal of monetary accommodation, and continued supply shortages have induced a 
downgrade in the outlook by 1.2 percentage-points. In China, pandemic-induced disruptions 
related to the zero-tolerance COVID-19 policy and protracted financial stress among property 
developers have induced a 0.8 percentage-point downgrade. Global growth is expected to slow 
down to 3.6% in 2023. 
 
Our Business Strategy: 
 
 
Education sector has seen a host of reform and improved financial outlays in recent years that 
could possibly transform the country into a knowledge haven. With human resource increasingly 
gaining significance in the overall development of the country, development of education 
infrastructure and skilled manpower is expected to remain the key focus in the current decade. In 
this scenario, infrastructure investment in the education sector especially in training and skilling 
is likely to see a considerable increase in the current decade.Furthermore, with online mode of 
education being used by several educational organisations, the higher education sector in India is 
set for major change and development in the years to come. 
 
The Company ensures that all its employees remain competent through education, skills, training 
and experience as necessary. The Company has had cordial relations between the management, 
employees and students and an atmosphere of sharing knowledge to achieve the objectives of 
the students and Company throughout the year. The Company is poised to motivate each of its 
employees to perform to the fullest extent possible and to appropriately reward their excellence. 
 
One of the strategies to be adopted will be providing online solutions; As the Indian education 
industry opens to new innovative ways of learning, it will be imperative to explore the 
opportunities by offering various online and supplemental solutions to help institutions leverage 
the most of technology. Going forward it will be significant for the company to have strategic 
alliances to provide quality education and make most use of the technology in providing a 
seamless and enjoyable learning for the students and institutions.  
 

 
DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 
 
The financial performance of the Company has increase in the year under review. 
 



 

During the year under review, the Standalone total Income was INR3,52,31,666.00as against INR 
1,78,84,28,500.for the corresponding previous year. 
 

Total Comprehensive loss for the period was INR 2,08,71,957.00 as against loss of INR 
22,80,367.00 in the corresponding previous year. 
 

CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS: 
 

Pursuant to provisions of Regulation 34 (3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 read with 
Schedule V part B(1) details of changes in Key Financial Ratios is given hereunder: 

 
 

*Previous year’s Figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary 
 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:  
 

Statements in this report and Corporate Governance Report read together with the Directors’ 
Report and financial statement describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, 
expectations and predictions, may be “forward looking statements”. Actual results may differ 
from those expressed or implied due to variations in prices of raw materials, seasonal demand 
and pricing in the Company’s principal markets, changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, 
economic developments within India and other incidental factors. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited  
 
 
SudhakarSonawane  PandurangPatekar 

Place: Mumbai        Managing Director  Whole-time Director  
Date: 17/08/2022    DIN:01689700   DIN:01689762 

 

Regd. Office: 
26/202, Upper Floor, Anand Nagar,  
Vakola Bridge, Nehru Road,  
Santacruz East Mumbai-400051,   
Maharashtra,India 

S. NO. Key Financial Ratio  FY 2021-22 *FY 2020-21 
1. Debtors Turnover Ratio %                1.65                 0.44  
2. Inventory Turnover Ratio %                     -                       -    
3. Interest Coverage Ratio %         (309.80)             (7.79) 
4. Current Ratio %                9.75              16.94  
5. Debt Equity Ratio %                0.00                0.00 
6. Operation Profit Margin %           (59.24)           (12.75) 
7. Net Profit Margin %           (59.24)           (12.75) 
8. Change in Return on Net 

Worth 
% 

          (24.98)             (2.18) 



 

Annexure – II 
 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 
 
 
Constitution of Committee 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company (the Board) constituted the committee to be known as 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisting of three or more non-executive 
directors out of which not less than one-half are independent directors. The Chairman of the 
Committee is an Independent Director. However, the chairperson of the company (whether 
executive or nonexecutive) may be appointed as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee but shall not chair such Committee." 
 
Objective 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 under 
the Listing Agreement. The objective of this policy is to lay down a framework in relation to 
remuneration of directors, KMP, senior management personnel and other employees.  
 
The Key Objectives of the Committee would be: 
 
 To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel and Senior Management. 
 

 To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 
of a director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees. 
 

 To formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board. 
 

 To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to 
the Board for further evaluation of the Board. 
 

 To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management. 
 

 To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to 
their effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.  
 

 To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented 
managerial persons and create competitive advantage. 
 

 To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan. 



 

 
 To assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities. 

 
 To Implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate 

governance. 
 
Applicability 
 

 Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) 
 Key Managerial Personnel 
 Senior Management Personnel 

 
Definitions: 
 
“Act” shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, including the 
modifications, amendments, clarifications, circulars or re-enactment thereof. 
 
 “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
“Committee” means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted 
or reconstituted by the Board. 
 
“Company” means Keerti Knowledge & Skills Limited. 
 
“Directors” mean Directors of the Company. 
 
“Independent Director” means a Director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 
2013. 
 
“Key Managerial Personnel” means key managerial personnel as defined under the Companies 
Act, 2013 and includes – 

 
o Managing Director, or Executive Director or manager and in their absence, a whole- time 

director; (includes Executive Chairman) 
o Company Secretary; 
o Chief Financial Officer; and 
o Such other officer as may be prescribed. 

 
“Policy” or “This policy” means Nomination and Remuneration Policy.  
 
“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services 
rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
 



 

“Senior Management” Senior Management means personnel of the company who are members 
of its core management team excluding the Board of Directors. This would also include all 
members of management one level below the executive directors including all functional heads. 
 
Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined 
herein but defined in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement as may be amended 
from time to time shall have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein. 
 
Role and Power of the Committee:- 
 
Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to the Board by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee: 
 
The Committee shall: 

 Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director. 

 Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be 
appointed in Key Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the 
criteria laid down in this policy. 

 Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel. 

 
Policy for appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management 
(i). Appointment criteria and qualifications 

 The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and 
experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management 
level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment. 

 A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position 
he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether 
qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory 
for the concerned position. 

 The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time 
Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person 
holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval 
of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement 
annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of 
appointment beyond seventy years. 

 
(ii). Term / Tenure 
a. Managing Director/Whole-time Director: 
 

 The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, 
Managing Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. 
No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term. 

 



 

b. Independent Director: 
 An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the 

Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special 
resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. 

 No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but 
such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years 
of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director 
shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with 
the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. However, if a person 
who has already served as an Independent Director for 5 years or more in the Company 
as on October 1, 2014 or such other date as may be determined by the Committee as 
per regulatory requirement; he/ she shall be eligible for appointment for one more term 
of 5 years only. 

 At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number 
of Boards on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed 
companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent 
Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or 
such other number as may be prescribed under the Act. 

 
c. Evaluation 

 The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and 
Senior Management Personnel at regular interval (yearly). 

 
d. Removal 

 Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable 
Act, rules and regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with 
reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel 
subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations. 

 
e. Retirement 

 The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable 
provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the 
discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same 
position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the 
benefit of the Company. 

 
Policy relating to the Remuneration for the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel 
 
(i). General: 

 
 The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Whole-time Director, KMP 

and Senior Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and 
recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission 



 

etc. shall be subject to the prior/post approval of the shareholders of the Company and 
Central Government, wherever required; 

 
 The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Whole-time Director shall be in 

accordance with the percentage / slabs / conditions laid down in the Articles of 
Association of the Company and as per the provisions of the Act; 

 
 Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation structure may be recommended 

by the Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the 
Shareholders in the case of Whole-time Director; 

 
 Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Whole-time Director, Chief 

Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and any other 
employees for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such 
insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel. 
Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance 
shall be treated as part of the remuneration. 

 
(ii). Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management 

Personnel: 
 

 Fixed pay: 
 

The Whole-time Director/ KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a 
monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the 
Committee. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, 
employer’s contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be 
decided and approved by the Board/ the Person authorized by the Board on the 
recommendation of the Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central 
Government, wherever required. 

 
 Minimum Remuneration: 

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the 
Company shall pay remuneration to its Whole-time Director in accordance with the 
provisions of Schedule V of the Act and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, 
with the previous approval of the Central Government. 

 
 Provisions for excess remuneration: 

If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of 
remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without 
the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such 
sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. 
The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by 
the Central Government. 

 



 

(iii). Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director: 
 Remuneration / Commission: 

 
The remuneration / commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and conditions mentioned 
in the Articles of Association of the Company and the Act. 

 
 Sitting Fees 

 
The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for 
attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such 
fees shall not exceed Rs. One Lac per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount 
as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time. 

 
 Commission: 

Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to 
the limit not exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company computed as per the applicable 
provisions of the Act. 

 
 Stock Options: 

 
An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company. 

 
Membership:- 

 The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them 
being independent. 

 
 Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting. 

 
 Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. 

 
 Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors. 

 
Chairman:- 

 Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director; 
 
 Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall 

not be a Chairman of the Committee; 
 

 In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting 
shall choose one amongst them to act as Chairman; 

 
 Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at 

the Annual General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the 
shareholders’ queries. 

 



 

Frequency of Meetings 
 
The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required. 
 
Committee Members’ Interests 
 
A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is 
discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated. 
 
The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the 
meetings of the Committee. 
 
Secretary 
The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee. 
 
Voting  
 

 Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority 
of votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be 
deemed a decision of the Committee.  

 
 In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote. 

 
Minutes of Committee Meeting 
 
Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the Committee at 
the subsequent meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at the subsequent 
Board and Committee meeting. 
 
Implementation 

 The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and 
manuals in supplement and for better implementation of this policy as considered 
appropriate.  

 The Committee may Delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members. 
 
Amendments to the Policy 
The Board of Directors on its own and / or as per the recommendations of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee can amend this Policy, as and when deemed fit. 
 
Amendments in the Law 
Any subsequent amendment/modification in the listing agreement and/or other applicable laws 
in this regard shall automatically apply to this Policy. 

 
 
 



 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited  
 
 
SudhakarSonawane  PandurangPatekar 

Place: Mumbai        Managing Director  Whole-time Director  
Date: 17/08/2022    DIN:01689700   DIN:01689762 

 
Regd. Office: 
26/202, Upper Floor, Anand Nagar,  
Vakola Bridge, Nehru Road,  
Santacruz East Mumbai-400051,   
Maharashtra, India   

 
 

  
  

 

  



 

Annexure III  
Particulars of Remuneration  

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 

2016 
  

i. The Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the Company for the financial year 2021-22; and  

 
ii. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Managing Director, Chief 

Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company in the financial year  
2021-22.   

  
Name of Director/ 

Key Managerial 
Personnel 

Designation  % increase/ 
decrease in 

remuneration 
in the Financial 
Year 2021-22 

Ratio of 
remuneration of each 
Directors to median 

remuneration of 
employees  

Mr. Sudhakar P Sonawane  Managing Director 14.52 3.18:01 
Mr. Pandurang N Patekar  Whole Time Director 130.72 1.05:01 
Mr. TanulRajuSonawane Non- Independent 

Non-executive 
- - 

Mr. Rajvirendra 
Singh Rajpurohit  

Independent Non-
executive 

- - 

Mr. Manish H Chandak Independent Non-
executive 

- - 

Ms. ArchanaSaini Independent Non-
executive 

- - 

Mr. Vinod Narsale  Chief Financial 
Officer 

13.93 1.78:01 

Ms. Priyanka Dharmesh 
Pandey 

Company Secretary - 0.50:01 

 
MD & CEO - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer; NI-NED – Non Independent, Non-
Executive Director; I-NED - Independent, Non-Executive Director, CFO – Chief Financial Officer; CS - 
Company Secretary.  
 
Notes:   



 

Median remuneration of all the employees of the Company for the financial year  
2021-22 is Rs.3,78,430/-.  

 
iii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 

2021-22.  
  

Particulars  Financial   
Year 2021-22 (Rs.)  

Financial   
Year 2020 -21 (Rs.)  

Increase/decrease  
by(%)  

Median remuneration of all 
employees  

3,78,430 1,69,425 123.36 

  
iv. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company.  

  
There were 9 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2022.  

  
v. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there 
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration.  
There was an decrease in the salaries of employees in the Financial Year 21-22 against the 
salaries in the financial year 20-21 which was approx (2.50%.)  

  
vi. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company  

Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, it is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, KMPs, 
Senior Management and other employees of the Company is as per the Policy of the 
Company.  
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
 
 
  

Place: Mumbai                               SudhakarPandurangSonawane 
Date:17.08.2022                Managing Director  

DIN: - 01689700 
 

Regd. Office: 
26/202, Upper Floor, Anand Nagar,  
Vakola Bridge, Nehru Road,  
Santacruz East Mumbai-400051,   
Maharashtra, India  



 

Annexure IV  
Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2)(a) of 

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 
2016  

 
None of the above employees are related to the Directors of the Company.  

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

 
 
  

Names of 
employees 

Designation/
Nature of 

Duties 

Remuneration 
Received [Rs.] 

p.a. 

Qualificat
ion 

Experience 
in years 

Age in 
 years 

Date of 
commenceme
nt  
of 
employment 

Last 
employme

nt held 

% of 
shar
ehol
ding 

SudhakarPand
urang  

Soanwane 
Managing 
Director 12,02,500 BA, MBA 

28 49 24.04.1999 NA 60.1
2 

Pandurang 
Narayan Pate

kar 
Wholetime  

Director 3,98,000 SSC 

25 51 09.07.2001 NA 0 

Vinod Namde
o  

Narsale CFO 6,75,590 
B.com, 
MBA 

25 48 09.02.2017 KIIPL 0 

PriyankaPand
ey 

Company 
Secretary 

and 
Compliance 

Officer 

  1,87,420  
B.com, 
CS, LLB 

2 31 21.10.2021 Shreeji 
Advisory 
Services 
Private 
Limited 

0 

Padmanabhan
 Vidyadharan 

Vinod COO 8,11,770 
B.com, 
MBA 

27 46 09.02.2017 NA 0 

Geeta B 
Tilwani 

Account 
Assistant -

Internal 
Auditor 

3,96,960 B.com, 
GDCA, 
MBA 

23 43 01.08.2018 KIIPL 0 

AshishGurav Co-ordinator 3,78,430 B.com 11 33 01.02.2019 NA 0 
 

Rajendra 
Thakur 

Driver 1,75,595 SSC 20 46 01.02.2017 NA 0 

SantoshSona
wane 

Office 
Assistant 

2,90,790 
 

SSC 10 35 01.02.2017 NA 0 



 

Place: Mumbai                               SudhakarPandurangSonawane 
Date:17.08.2022                      Managing Director  

DIN: - 01689700 
Regd. Office: 
26/202, Upper Floor, Anand Nagar, Vakola Bridge, Nehru Road,  
Santacruz East Mumbai-400051,  Maharashtra, India  
  

Annexure – V 
 

FORM AOC-I 
 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate 
companies/joint ventures 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in INR) 
 

Sl. No. 1. 2. 
Name of the subsidiary Keerti Institute 

India Private 
Limited 

Keerti Tutorials 
India Private 

Limited 
Reporting period for the subsidiary 
concerned, if different from the 
holding company’s reporting period. 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 

Reporting currency and Exchange rate 
as on the last date of the relevant 
financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries. 

INR  INR 

Share capital 1,00,000 1,00,000 
Reserves & surplus (1,76,01,313) (2,77,04,073) 
Total assets 2,85,37,100 25,20,947 
Total Liabilities 4,60,38,412 3,01,25,020 
Investments 0 0 
Turnover 2,92,72,385 0 
Profit/(Loss) before taxation (85,00,355) (1,19,04,892) 
Provision for taxation 71,380 0 
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability) 79,396 30,530 



 

Profit/(Loss) after taxation (84,92,340) (1,18,74,362) 
Proposed Dividend 0 0 
% of shareholding 100% 100% 

  
 
 
 

 
 

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures 
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate 

Companies and Joint Ventures 
  
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited  
 
 

SudhakarSonawane  PandurangPatekar 
Place: Mumbai        Managing Director  Whole-time Director  
Date: 17.08.2022     DIN:01689700  DIN:01689762 

 

Regd. Office: 
26/202, Upper Floor, Anand Nagar,  
Vakola Bridge, Nehru Road,  
Santacruz East Mumbai-400051,   
Maharashtra, India    

 Name of Associates/Joint Ventures  
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date - 
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on 

the year end 
- 

 No. - 
 Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture - 
 Extend of Holding % - 

3. Description of how there is significant influence - 
4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated - 
5. Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited 

Balance Sheet 
- 

6. Profit / Loss for the year - 
i. Considered in Consolidation - 
i. Not Considered in Consolidation - 



 

Annexure VI 
 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the financial year ended March 31, 2022 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

To  
The Members  
Keerti Knowledge & Skills Limited 
26/202, Upper Floor, Anand Nagar, Vakola Bridge,  
Nehru Road, Santacruz East, Mumbai – 400055,  
Maharashtra, India. 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Keerti Knowledge & Skills Limited (hereinafter called 
the Company). In light of ongoing COVID-19 pandemic situation, due to limitations of physical 
verifications of various records, the Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us 
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing 
our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my said verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on 31st March 2022 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder, the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:  
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2022 according to the 
provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under as amended; 
 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder 
as amended;  
 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder as 
amended;  
 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings (to the extent as may be applicable to the Company); 



 

 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): —  
 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011(to the extent applicable ;) 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015;  

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended; (to the extent as may be 
applicable to the Company) 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not Applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period);  

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client;  

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period and  

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
1998; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  
 
a. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India  
b. The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges viz NSE along 

with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as applicable 
for respective periods. 

 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
 
I further report that: 

- The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes that took place 
in the composition of the Board of Directors were in proper compliance during the period 
under review. 
 

- Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 



 

seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.  
 

- All the decisions at the Board Meetings and the Committee Meetings were carried out by 
majority / unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the Board of Directors and minutes of 
the Committee Meetings as the case may be. 

 
I further report that: 
 

- There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 
I further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions having a major 
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, guidelines and 
standards.  
 
 

For: M/s. DEEP SHUKLA & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES   
 
Sd/-     

Place: Mumbai    DEEP SHUKLA 
Date:02/08/2022    {PROPRIETOR} 

FCS: 5652  
CP NO.5364 
UDIN:F005652D000728055 

  



 

 

ANNEXURE TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

To  
The Members  
Keerti Knowledge & Skills Limited 

 
I further state that my said report of the even date has to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial/ Statutory Records is the responsibility of the Management of 
the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these records based on the 
audit. 
 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. 
 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company. 
 

4. Wherever required I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance 
of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standard is the responsibility of management. My examination is limited to 
the verification of procedures on test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 

 
For: M/s. DEEP SHUKLA & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES   
 
Sd/-     

Place: Mumbai    DEEP SHUKLA 
Date:02/08/2022    {PROPRIETOR} 

FCS: 5652  
CP NO.5364 
UDIN:F005652D000728055 

  



 

Annexure VII 
SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

[Pursuant to Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 

February 08, 2019] 
 

 

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report of “Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited” for the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

 
We, Deep Shukla & Associates have examined: 
 

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by Keerti 
Knowledge And Skills Limited [CIN: L72200MH1999PLC119661] (“the listed entity”), 

(b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,  
(c) website of the listed entity,  
(d) other relevant document(s)/ filing, which has been relied upon to make this certification,  

 
for the year ended March 31, 2022 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of : 
 

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, 
circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and 
 

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the 
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (“SEBI”);  
 

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been 
examined, are:- 

 
(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015;  
(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009 (till November 09,2018); [Not applicable during the review period] 
(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018 (w.e.f. November 09, 2018); [Not applicable during the review period] 
(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011 (to the extent applicable);  
(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; [Not applicable 

during the review period] 



 

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; [Not 
applicable during the review period 

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
[Not applicable during the review period] 

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and  
Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; [Not applicable during the review period] 

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (to the 
extent applicable); 

(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993, as amended; 

(k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Intermediaries) Regulations, 2008; [Not applicable 
during the review period] 

(l) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations,  
     2018; and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder;. 

And based on the above examination, we hereby report that, during the review period: 
(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ 

guidelines issued thereunder; 
 

(b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations 
and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder in so far as it appears from our examination of those 
records.  
 

(c) The following are the details of actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/ 
material subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard 
Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ 
Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder:  

 
Sr. No  
 

Action taken by  
 

Details of 
violation  
 
 

Details of action taken 
E.g. fines, warning 
letter, debarment, etc.  
 

Observations/ 
remarks of the 
Practicing 
Company 
Secretary, if 
any.  

 
NIL 

 
(d) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in 

previous reports: 
 
Sr. No  
 

Observations of the 
Practicing Company 
Secretary in the 

Observations 
made in the 
secretarial 

Actions taken by the 
listed entity, if any  
 

Comments of 
the Practicing 
Company 



 

previous reports  
 

compliance 
report for the 
year ended…  
 

Secretary on 
the actions 
taken by the 
listed entity  

 

        
For: M/s. Deep Shukla & Associates 

 Company Secretaries  
(A peer reviewed unit)   

    
 
Place: Mumbai                                                    Deep Shukla 
Date: 20.05.2022     {Proprietor} 

 FCS: 5652  
 CP NO. 5364 

UDIN:F005652D000353318 
 

 
 



 

Annexure – VIII 

 
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
The Report on Corporate Governance for the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2022 containing, 
inter-alia, the matters as specified in Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) is 
presented hereunder: 
 
Introduction  
 
Corporate Governance is not merely the compliance of a set of regulatory laws and regulations 
but is a set of good and transparent practices that enable an organization to perform efficiently 
and ethically to generate long term wealth and create value for all its stakeholders. It goes 
beyond building and strengthening the trust and integrity of the Company by ensuring 
conformity with the globally accepted best governance practices. The Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI) observes keen vigilance over governance and fulfillment of these regulations 
in letter and spirit, which entails surety towards sustainable development of the Company, 
enhancing stakeholders’ value eventually. 
 
Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance 
 
Your Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages best management practices, 
compliance of law and adherence to these ethical standards has set a culture in the Company 
wherein good Corporate Governance underlines interface with all stakeholders. The Company is 
committed to attain the highest levels of transparency, accountability, and equity in all facets of 
its working, and in all its interactions with its stakeholders including shareholders, employees, 
lenders and the government. 
 
Effective corporate governance practicesconstitute the strong foundation on whichsuccessful 
commercial enterprises are built tolast. The Company’s philosophy on corporategovernance 
oversees business strategies andensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporatebehaviour and 
fairness to all stakeholderscomprising regulators, employees, customers,vendors, investors and 
the society at large. 
 
The Company believes in adopting the best practices in the areas of Corporate Governance. Even 
in a strong competitive business environment, the Management and Employees of the Company 
are committed to value transparency, integrity, honesty and accountability which are 
fundamental core values of Corporate Governance. 
 
The Company is in compliance with therequirements stipulated under Regulation17 to 27 read 
with Schedule V and clauses(b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation46 of Securities and 
Exchange Board ofIndia (Listing Obligations and DisclosureRequirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“SEBI ListingRegulations”), as applicable, with regard tocorporate governance. 



 

 
The details of Company’s board structure andthe various committees that constitute 
thegovernance structure1 of the organization arecovered in detail in this report. 
 
Board of Directors 
 
The Board of Directors (“the Board”) facilitates effective fulfillment of the Board’s tasks and 
provides leadership and guidance to the Company’s management and helps in supervising the 
performance of the Company and helps achieving goals. The Board plays a crucial role enhancing 
and protecting the reputation of the organization are expected to exercise their duties in the best 
interests of shareholders and to maximize wealth. 
 
The Board comprises of the members distinguished in various fields such as management, 
finance, law and marketing. This provides reliability to the Company’s functioning and the Board 
ensures a critical examination of the strategies and operational planning mechanisms adopted by 
the management across the globe. 
 
The Company has an optimum combination of Directors on the Board and is in conformity with 
Regulation 17 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as on March 31, 2022, the Board comprised of 6 Directors out 
of which 3 are Non-Executive & Independent Directors; 2 are Executive Directors and 1 is Non-
Executive & Non-Independent Director. 
 
Agenda papers of the Boards and its Committee meetings are circulated to the Directors well in 
advance of the meetings, supported with significant information as per Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for an 
effective and well-informed decision making during the meetings. 
 
The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company’s business policy and 
strategy apart from other normal business. During the year 07 (Seven) Board Meetings were held 
during the year ended 31st March, 2022, the dates which are 2nd April, 2021, 21st June, 2021, 12th 
August, 2021, 27th August, 2021, 21st October, 2021, 01st November, 2021 and 18th January, 2022. 
Time gap between any two meetings was not more than 120 days. 
 
 

Name of the 
Directors 

Category 

No. of Board 
Meetings 
Attended 

During the 
year 

No. of 
Equity 
Shares 

held as on 
March 

31, 2022 

Attendance 
at previous 
AGM Held 

on 
27thSeptem
ber, 2021 
(Y-Yes, N-

No) 

Directorshi
p in other 

Companies 
(including 
section 8 

Company) 

Other 
Board 

Committee
s 

Chai
rper
son 

Me
mbe

r 



 

 
The Board periodically reviews the compliance report of all laws applicable to the Company. All 
the Directors have made necessary disclosures about the directorships and committee positions 
they occupy in other companies. None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 
10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees across all Companies in which they are 
Directors. 
 
The particulars of Directors, who are proposed to be re-appointed at the ensuing AGM, are given 
in the Notice convening the AGM. 
 
Further, there are no inter-se relationships between our Board Members of the Company. 
 
Audit Committee 
 
The Audit Committee comprises of experts specializing in accounting / financial management. 
During the Financial Year 2021-2022, 5 (five) Board Meetings were held on  
2nd April, 2021, 21st June, 2021, 12th August, 2021, 01st November, 2021 and 18th January, 2022. 
The time gap between any two meetings was not more than 4 months and the Company has 
complied with all the requirements as mentioned under the Listing Agreement/SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Details of the composition of the Committee and attendance during the year are as under: 
 

Name of the Director Category 
No. of Meetings 

Attended 
Mr. RajvirendraSingh Rajpurohit Chairperson, Independent Director 05 
Mrs. Archana Sanjay Saini Member, Independent Director 05 

Mr. Sudhakar P 
Sonawane 

Promoter cum 
Managing 
Director 

7 61,25,290 Y 
2 - - 

Mr. Pandurang N 
Patekar 

Whole-time 
Director 

7 0 Y 
2 - - 

Mr. Rajvirendra S 
Rajpurohit 

Independent 
Director 

7 0 Y 
3 - - 

Mrs. Archana S Saini 
Independent 
Director 

7 0 N 
- - - 

Mr. Manish H 
Chandak 

Independent 
Director 

7 0 Y 
1   

Mr. Tanul R 
Sonawane 

Non-Executive 
& Non-
Independent 
Director 

7 0 Y 

- - - 



 

Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar Member, Executive Director 05 
 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in order to cover the matters specified under 
revised Regulation 17(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. This 
Committee has powers and roles comprising of Financial Reporting and disclosure, 
recommendation of appointment/removal of Auditors, reviewing of company’s results, 
evaluation of Independent Directors performances. 
 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 
The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 19 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time. 
 
During the Financial Year 2021-2022, 4 (four) Board Meetings were held on  
21st June,2021, 12th August, 2021, 21st October,2021 and18th January, 2022. 
. 
Details of composition of the Committee and attendance during the year are as under: 
 

Name of the Director Category 
No. of Meetings 

Attended 
Mr. RajvirendraSingh 
Rajpurohit 

Chairman, Independent Director 04 

Mrs. Archana Sanjay Saini Member, Independent Director 04 
Mr.TanulRajuSonawane Member, Non-Executive Director 04 

 
This Committee has powers to recommend/ approve remuneration, Identification of Persons 
who are qualified to become director, recommend to the board their appointment and removal, 
approve remuneration of Non-Executive Directors. 
 
The performance evaluation criteria for independent directors are defined in Performance 
Evaluation Policy, which is available on our website www.keerti.org. 
 
 
Remuneration Policy for Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees of the Company 
 
As per listing regulation the Company is required to frame Remuneration Policy for Key 
Managerial Personnel and Other employees. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee are 
responsible for Identifying suitable person eligible to become director and recommend to the 
Board their appointment and removal. Through its compensation programme, the Company 
endeavors to attract, retain, develop and motivate a high performance workforce.  
 



 

The Independent Directors are entitled to receiveremuneration by way of sitting fees, 
reimbursementof expenses for participation in the Board/Committeemeetings and commission 
as detailed hereunder: 
 

a. Sitting fees for each meeting of the Board orCommittee of the Board attended by him or 
her, ofsuch sum as may be approved by the Board withinthe overall limits prescribed under 
the CompaniesAct, 2013. 
 

b. Commission on a quarterly basis, of such sum asmay be approved by the Board and 
Members onthe recommendation of the Board Governance,Nomination and Compensation 
Committee.The aggregate commission payable to all theIndependent Directors and non-
executive directorsput together shall not exceed 1% of the net profitsof the Company 
during any financial year. Thecommission is payable on pro-rata basis to thoseDirectors 
who occupy office for part of the year. 
 

c. Reimbursement of travel, stay and other expensesfor participation in Board/Committee 
meetings. 
 

d. Independent Directors and Promoter Directorsare not entitled to participate in the stock 
optionschemes of the Company. 
 

 
In determining the remuneration of Chairman, CEO andManaging Director, and Senior 
Management Employeesand Key Managerial Personnel, the Board Governance,Nomination 
and Compensation Committee and theBoard shall ensure/consider the following: 

 
a. The balance between fixed and variable payreflecting short and long-term 

performanceobjectives, appropriate to the working of theCompany and its goals. 
 

b. Alignment of remuneration of Key ManagerialPersonnel and Directors with long-term 
interests ofthe Company. 
 

c. Company’s performance vis-à-vis the annualachievement, individuals’ performance vis-à-
visKRAs/KPIs, industry benchmark and currentcompensation trends in the market. 

 
The Board Governance, Nomination and CompensationCommittee recommend the remuneration 
forthe Chairman, CEO and Managing Director, SeniorManagement and Key Managerial 
Personnel. Thepayment of remuneration to the Executive Directors andNon-Executive Directors 
is approved by the Board andMembers. Approval of Members is also obtained in caseof 
remuneration payable to Non-Executive Directors.There was no change to the remuneration 
policy duringthe financial year. 
 
Details of remuneration paid to Directors are as under: 
 

Sr. Name of Designation Fixed Salary per annum (In Rs.) Commis Sitting Total 



 

No
. 

Directors  Basic Perquisite
/ 

Allowance 

Total 
Fixed 
Salary 

-sion Fees 

1 
Mr. 
Sudhakar P 
Sonawane 

Promoter 
cum 
Managing 
Director 

12,02,50
0 

- 12,02,50
0 

- - 12,02,500 

2 Mr. 
Pandurang N 
Patekar 

Whole-time 
Director 

3,98,000 - 3,98,000 - - 3,98,000 

3 Mr. 
Rajvirendra S 
Rajpurohit 

Independen
t Director 

- - - - 17,500 17,500 

4 Mrs. Archana 
S Saini 

Independen
t Director 

- - - - 15,000 15,000 

5 Mr. Manish 
H Chandak 

Independen
t Director 

- - - - 17,500 17,500 

6 

Mr. Tanul R 
Sonawane 

Non-
Executive & 
Non-
Independen
t Director 

- - - - 17,500 
 

17,500 
 

 
Further, there is no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-à-vis 
the Company. None of the Executive Directors are eligible for payment of any severance fees. 
 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
 
The terms of reference are in line with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. The Committee reviews Shareholder’s/ Investor’ s complaints like non-receipt 
of Annual Report, physical transfer/ transmission/transposition, split/ consolidation of share 
certificates, issue of duplicate share certificates etc. This Committee is also empowered to 
consider and resolve the grievance of other stakeholders of the Company including security 
holders. 
 
During the Financial Year 2021-2022, 4 (Four) Meetings were held on 21st June, 2021, 12th August, 
2021, 01st October, 2021 and 18th January, 2022. The details of composition of the Committee 
and attendance during the year are as under: 
 

Name of the Director Category 
No. of Meetings 

Attended 



 

Mrs. Archana Sanjay Saini Chairperson, Independent Director 04 
Mr. RajvirendraSingh Rajpurohit Member, Independent Director 04 
Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar Member, Executive Director 04 
 
The details of complaints received and resolved during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 
are given in the Table below. The complaints relate to non-receipt of annual report, dividend, 
share transfers, other investor grievances, etc. 
 
Details of complaints received and resolved during the Financial Year 2021-22: 
 

Particulars Number of Compliant 
Opening as on April 1, 2021 - 
Received during the year - 
Resolved during the year - 
Closing as on March 31, 2022 - 
 
 
General Body Meetings 

 
Financial Year Date Location of the Meeting Time 

(IST) 
Special 

Resolution 
(s) Passed 

2017-2018 17th September 2018 26/202, Anand Nagar, Nehru 
Road, Vakola Bridge,Santacruz 

(East), Mumbai – 400055, 
Maharashtra, India 

10:00 A.M Nil 

2018-2019 27th September 2019 10:00 A.M 05 

2019-20 30th September 2020 through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual 

Means (“OAVM”) 

11:30A.M 01 

2020-21 27th September, 2021 through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual 

Means (“OAVM”) 

11:00A.M Nil 

 
No Special Resolution was passed by the Company last year through Postal Ballot. None of the 
businesses proposed to be transacted at the ensuing AGM require passing a Special Resolution 
through Postal Ballot. 
 
Training for Board Members 
Regulation 25(7) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, every listed company is required to conduct familiarization 
programme enabling the Independent Directors of the Company to understand the Company’s 
business in depth that would facilitate their active participation in managing the Company. 



 

 
The Company has adopted a system to familiarize its Independent Directors with the Company, 
to make them aware of their roles, rights & responsibilities in the Company, and nature of the 
industry in which the Company operates business model of the Company, etc.  
 
Performance Evaluation 
The performance evaluation process is a constructive mechanism for improving board 
effectiveness, maximizing strengths and tackling weaknesses, leading to an 
immediate improvement in performance throughout the organization. The Board of the 
Company has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the 
Directors individually including the Chairman of the Board as well as the evaluation of the 
working of its Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee on parameters such as attendance and participation in the Meetings, 
preparedness for the meetings, understanding of the Company & the external environment in 
which it operates, contribution to strategic direction, raising of valid concerns to the Board, 
constructive contribution to issues, active participation at meetings and engaging with 
&challenging the management team without confronting or obstructing the proceeding of the 
Board and its Committee meetings of which the Director is a member pursuant to the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. 
The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out 
by the Independent Directors at its meeting. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the 
evaluation process. 
 
Disclosures 
I. Related Party Transactions 
The transactions with related parties as per Accounting Standard AS-18 are set out in Notes to 
accounts under Note no.36 formingpart of financial statements. Further, no transactions were 
entered into with Related Parties as defined under Section 188 the Companies Act, 2013. Further, 
there were no materially significant transactions with related parties during the financial year 
which were in conflict with the interest of the Company. 
 
II. Managing Director Certification 

Certification on financial statements pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been obtained from the 
Managing Director of the Company. Extract of the same is given at the end of this Report. 
 
III. Code of Conduct for Directors  
The Board has laid down Codes of Conduct for Executive Directors and for Non-Executive/ 
Independent Directors of the Company. The Codes of Conduct have been circulated to the Board 
and the compliance of the same has been affirmed by them. A declaration signed by the MD in 
this regard is given at the end of this Report.  
 



 

IV. Subsidiary Companies 
The Company has two wholly owned subsidiary Companies namely Keerti Institute India Private 
Limited and Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited. All the subsidiary companies of the Company 
aremanaged by their Boards having the rights andobligations to manage these companies in the 
bestinterest of respective stakeholders. The Companynominates its representatives on the Board 
ofsubsidiary companies and monitors performance ofsuch companies, inter alia, by reviewing: 
 

a. Financial statements, the investment, intercorporateloans/advances made by the 
unlistedsubsidiary companies, statement containing allsignificant transactions and 
arrangements enteredby the unlisted subsidiary companies forming partof the financials 
being reviewed by the Audit, Riskand Compliance Committee of the Company on 
aquarterly basis. 
 

b. Minutes of the meetings of the unlisted subsidiarycompanies, if any, are placed before 
the Company’sBoard regularly. 
 

c. Providing necessary guarantees, letter of comfortand other support for their day-to-day 
operationsfrom time-to-time. 

 
As required under Regulation 16(1)(c) and 24 ofListing Regulations, the Company has adopted 
apolicy on determining “material subsidiary” and thesaid Policy is available on the Company’s 
website at www.keerti.org 
 
V. Risk Management & Internal Control 
The board has ultimate responsibility for risk management and internal control, including for the 
determination of the nature and extent of the principal risks it is willing to take to achieve its 
strategic objectives and for ensuring that an appropriate culture has been embedded throughout 
the organization. The Company has implemented a comprehensive ‘Enterprise Risk Management’ 
framework in order to understand the risks they are exposed to, put controls in place to counter 
threats, and effectively pursue their objectives and further to anticipate, identify, measure, 
mitigate, monitor and report the risks, details of which are given in the Risk Management section 
under ‘Management Discussion and Analysis Report’ which forms part of this Annual Report. The 
team presents their key audit findings of every quarter to the Audit Committee. The 
management updates the members about the remedial actions taken or proposed for the same. 
The suggestions and comments from the Committee members are vigilantly incorporated and 
executed by the Company. 
 
VI. Independent Directors 
The Independent Directors of the Company have the option and freedom to meet and interact 
with the Company’s Management as and when they deem it necessary. They are provided with 
necessary resources and support to enable them to analyze the information/data provided by the 
Management and help them to perform their role effectively. 
 



 

VII. Compliance with mandatory / discretionary requirements under Regulation 27 read 
withSchedule II Part E of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations,2015: 

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements under Regulation 27 and Schedule 
V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The status of 
compliance with non-mandatory recommendations under Regulation 27 and Part E of Schedule II 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is provided 
below: 
 

 The Board: -As per Para A of Part E of Schedule II of the ListingRegulations, a non-
executive Chairman of the Boardmay be entitled to maintain a Chairman’s Office at 
thecompany’s expense and also allowed reimbursementof expenses incurred in 
performance of his duties. TheChairman of the Company is an Executive Director 
andhence this provision is not applicable to us. 
 

 Shareholders rights: -Considering the dynamic shareholder demography andtrading on 
the stock exchanges, as a prudent measure,we display our quarterly and half yearly 
results on ourwebsite www.keerti.org and also publish our results inwidely circulated 
newspapers. We have communicatedthe payment of dividend by e-mail to shareholders 
inaddition to dispatch of letters to all shareholders. Wepublish the voting results of 
shareholder meetingsand make it available on our website www.keerti.org,and report the 
same to Stock Exchanges in terms ofRegulation 44 of the Listing Regulations. 
 

 Modified opinion(s) in audit report: - The Auditors have issued an unmodified opinion on 
thefinancial statements of the Company. 
 

 Reporting of Internal Auditor: - Reporting of Head of Internal Audit is to the Chairmanof 
the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee andadministratively to the Chief Financial 
Officer. Head ofInternal Audit has regular and exclusive meetings withthe Audit 
Committee. 

 
VIII. Review of Directors' Responsibility Statement: 
 
The Board in its report has confirmed that the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2022 have been prepared as per applicable Accounting Standards and policies and that 
sufficient care has beentaken for maintaining adequate accounting records. 
 
IX. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions 
placement: 
The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions 
placement asspecified under Regulation 32(7A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations,2015 during the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2022. 
 
X. Recommendation by Committee: 



 

The Board has accepted all recommendations made by its committees during the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2022. 
 
XI. Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated 
basis, to the statutory auditors and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the 
statutory auditor is a part, given below: 
 

Nature of Payments Amount (Rs. In Lakhs) 
Statutory Audit 2.00 
Tax Audit 0.00 
Other Services including reimbursement of expenses - 
Total 2.00 

 
XII.Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

 
Sr. No. Particulars No. of Complaints 

a. Complaints filed during the financial year Nil 
b. Complaints disposed of during the financial year Nil 
c. Complaints pending as on end of the financial year Nil 

 
XIII. Disclosure of the compliance with Corporate Governance: 
 
The Company has complied with the Regulations 17-20, 22-23, 24A, 25-27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of 
sub-regulations (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, during the financial year ended 31st March, 2022. Regulations 21 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to the 
Company. 
 
 
Means of Communication 
The quarterly and annual financial results are normally published in Free Press Journal (English) 
and Navshakti (Marathi) newspapers. The following information is promptly uploaded on the 
Company’s website viz. www.keerti.org. 
 
General Shareholder Information 
 
i. Annual General Meeting 

Day, Date & Time Tuesday, September 27th, 2022 at 11.00 AM (IST) 
Venue Through VC or OAVM 

 
ii.Financial year   - April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 
 
Financial Calendar (Tentative) – Financial Year 2021-22 



 

1st Quarter : On or before 15th August, 2021 
2nd Quarter : On or before 15th November, 2021 
3rd Quarter : On or before 15th February, 2022 
4th Quarter : On or before 30th May, 2022 

 
iii. Dividend 
In order to conserve the resources for the further growth of the Company, your Directors think fit 
not to recommend any dividend for the year under review. 
 
iv. Listing with Stock Exchange:  
The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the year 2022-23 to NSE where 
the Company’s Equity Shares are listed. 
 
v. Stock Code / Symbol 

 
NSE Security ID KEERTI 
ISIN in (NSDL and CDSL) INE586X01012 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN) L72200MH1999PLC119661 

 
vi. Market Price Data 

 
The market price data i.e. monthly high and low prices of the Company’s shares on National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (NSE) are given below: 
 

Month 
*NSE 

Share Price (Rs.) 
High Low 

Apr-2021 29.90 22.55 
May-2021 26.00 20.00 
Jun-2021 23.50 21.15 
Jul-2021 22.60 19.10 
Aug-2021 20.85 17.00 
Sep-2021 25.50 17.45 
Oct-2021 21.70 17.95 
Nov-2021 22.50 16.10 
Dec-2021 21.40 17.35 
Jan-2022 28.65 18.80 
Feb-2022 21.35 16.15 
Mar-2022 20.45 16.20 

* Source: NSE Website 
 
vii. Performance in comparison  

 



 

The company Fully Paid Share Price versus Nifty 50 
 
 

 
 

 
 

viii. Registrar & Transfer Agent 
 

Link Intime India Private Limited 
C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S.Marg, Vikhroli West,  
Mumbai – 400083, Maharashtra, India. 
Tel No.: 022  -4918 6270 
E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

  
ix. Share Transfer System 

 
Share Transfers in physical form can be lodged with Link Intime India Private Limited. The 
transfers are normally processed within 15 days from the date of receipt if the documents are 
complete in all respects. 
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x. Distribution of shareholding 

 
Share Holding (Nominal Value) Rs. 

(As on 31.03.2022) 
Shareholders 

No. % 
Upto 5,000 2096 81.2718 
5,001--   10,000 201 7.7937 
10,001 – 20,000 103 3.9938 
20,001 – 30,000 54  2.0938 
30,001 – 40,000 20 0.7755 
40,001 – 50,000 21 0.8143 
50,001 – 1,00,000 41 1.5898 
1,00,001 and above 43 1.6673 
TOTAL 2579 100.00 

 
xi. Shareholding Pattern as on 31stMarch, 2022: 

Sr. 
No. 

Category Total No. of Shares 
held(of Re. 10/- each ) 

% of Total 
Shareholdings 

1. Promoter Group 6128018 60.1429 
2. Financial Institutions / Banks - - 
3. Individual shareholders holding nominal 

share capital uptoRs. 2 lakh. 
1318023 12.94 

4. Individual shareholders holding nominal 
share capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakh 

2308966 22.66 

5. Hindu Undivided Family 411517 4.0388 
6. Non Resident Indians (Non Repat) 152 0.0015 
7. Non Resident Indians (Repat) 13705 0.1345 
8. Clearing Member 7160 0.0703 
9. Bodies Corporate 1557 0.0153 
 Total 10189098 100.00 

 
xii. Top 10 Shareholders as on March 31, 2022 

Sr.No. For Each of the Top 10 
Shareholders 

Shareholding as on 31st March, 2022 
No. of shares % of total shares of the Company 

1. SudhakarPandurangSonawane 6125290 60.1161 
2. Amar RajmalKakaria 334800 3.2859 
3. Ashok Kumar Mohatta 258354 2.5356 
4. Ramesh D LukadHuf 258332 2.5354 
5. Shaila Ramesh Lukad 258332 2.5354 
6. SharadJijabaKharat 229412 2.2515 
7. GauravChakraborty 148800 1.4604 
8. MuktiLodha 124000 1.217 



 

9. AmitLodha 124000 1.217 
10. KusumLodha 124000 1.217 
 

xiii. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity 
 
According to the requirements of the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) the shares of 
the company are to be compulsorily traded in a dematerialized form. Consequently the company 
had written to its shareholders advising them that they had the option of converting their 
shareholdings from the physical form to the electronic form.  As of 31st March, 2021, a total 
number of 10189098shares, representing 100% of the total shares of the company have been 
dematerialized.  
 
xiv. Address for Correspondence 
26/202, Upper Floor, AnandNagar,Vakola Bridge, Nehru Road, Santacruz East Mumbai-400051,  
Maharashtra, India. 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

 
 
  

Place: Mumbai                                              SudhakarPandurangSonawane 
Date: 17.08.2022                      Managing Director  

DIN: - 01689700 
  



 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
To, 
The Members of 
Keerti Knowledge &Skiils Limited 
 
I have examined the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance by Keerti 
Knowledge &Skiils Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended March 31, 2022, as stipulated in 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations). 
 
The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 
management. My examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation 
thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the 
Company. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, 
and the representations made by the Directors and the Management and considering the 
relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI) in the light of CoVID-19 situation, I certify that the Company has complied 
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations during the 
year ended March 31, 2022. 
 
I state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 
 

For: M/s. DEEP SHUKLA & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES   
 
 

      DEEP SHUKLA 
      {PROPRIETOR} 

FCS: 5652  
Place: Mumbai     CP NO.5364 
Date: 17.08.2022      

  



 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 
 

To, 
The Members of 
Keerti Knowledge & Skills Limited 
 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of Keerti Knowledge & Skills Limited having CIN L72200MH1999PLC119661 and having 
Registered Office at 26/202, Upper Floor, Anand Nagar, Vakola Bridge, Nehru Road, Santacruz 
East, Mumbai-400055, Maharashtra, India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced 
before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with 
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of Securities Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that 
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending 
on March 31, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of Companies, by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority. 
 

DIN No. Name of Director Date of Appointment 
01689700 SudhkarPandurangSonawane 29/04/1999 
01689762 Pandurang Narayan Patekar 09/07/2001 
06770931 Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 09/02/2017 
08220007 Manish HeeralalChandak 04/09/2020 
08264686 TanulRajuSonawane 27/10/2018 
08427866 Archana Sanjay Saini 06/05/2019 

 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 

For: M/s. DEEP SHUKLA & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES   
 
 
 

      DEEP SHUKLA 
      {PROPRIETOR} 



 

FCS: 5652  
Place: Mumbai     CP NO.5364 
Date: 17.08.2022      



 

CERTIFICATION FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CFO: 
 
In terms of Regulation 17(8) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered with the National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited (NSE), I hereby certify as under: 
 
a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 

March 31, 2022 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
 

1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 
fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 
 

2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are 
in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of 
Conduct. 
 

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the 
Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which 
we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
There have been no 
 

I. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
 

II. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year; 
 

III. Instances of fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, of the 
management or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control 
system over financial reporting. 

 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

 
  

Place: Mumbai                       SudhakarPSonawane  Vinod N Narsale 
Date:17.08.2022              Managing Director   Chief Financial officer 

DIN: - 01689700 



 

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR ON ‘CODE OF CONDUCT’ 
 
I hereby confirm that: 
 
The Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and senior management, 
affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them. 
 
 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
 
  

Place: Mumbai                           Sudhakar P Sonawane   
Date:17.08.2022                 Managing Director     

DIN: - 01689700 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBER OF KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLSLIMITED  

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion  

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Keerti Knowledge and Skills 
Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement 
of cash flows ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013(the 
“Act”)in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) And other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the loss and total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.  

Basis for opinion  

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibility under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of ethics issued by the 
Institute of Charted Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the ICAI’s Code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Key audit matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Other Information   

The Company’s Board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report 
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 



 

Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements  

 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, managements is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing , as a applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected on influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these standalone financial statements.  



 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in Internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charges with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulations 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.  
 



 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the order. 

 
2) As required by Section 143(3)of the Act, based on our audit we report that:  

 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

it appears from our examination of those books. 
c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account.  

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
section 133 of the Act.  

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.  

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 
B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.                             

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:  

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impactits financial position 
as on 31st March2022. 
 
b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
There were any material foresee able losses. 
 
c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
 

d. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
‘Intermediaries’, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 



 

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ‘Ultimate 
Beneficiaries’ or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

 
e. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from 
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ‘Funding Parties’, with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

 
f. Based on our audit procedures, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe 

that the representations under sub-clause (iv) and (v) contain any material mis-statements. 
 

g. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year. 
 

For N K Mittal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 113281W 
 

N K Mittal  
(Partner) 
Membership Number: 046785 
UDIN: 22046785AJYAMW5980 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:18th May, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report 
Referred to in paragraph 9 of the independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Keerti 
Knowledge and Skills Limited on the financial statement as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022.                          
 
(1) (a) (A) In our Opinion and according to the information given to us, the company is maintaining proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant & Equipment. 
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets. 
 (b) In our Opinion and according to the information given to us, the Property, Plant & Equipment have been 
physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 
 (c) In our Opinion and according to the information given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the company does not hold any immovable property during the year, hence 3(i)(c) is not 
applicable.  
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, there are no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any 
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder 
 
(2) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is into service 
sector, therefore question of physical verification does not arise. 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has no working Capital limit sanctioned from Bank or Financial Institutions.  
 
(3) (a) In our opinion and on the basis of examination of books and records and on the basis of information and 
explanation given to us the Company has made investments in companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships. 
The Company has also provided guarantee or security or granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to 
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties details of which are given hereunder:  
 
Particulars  Loans 
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year  
- Subsidiaries 86,49,018 
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect 
of such cases 

 

- Subsidiaries 5,74,46,073 
 
b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, 
we are of the opinion that the investments made, and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances 
in the nature of loans and guarantees provided to the wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company are not prejudicial 
to the Company’s interest. 
 c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, 
we are of the opinion that in respect of the loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of 
principal have not been stipulated. However, the interest payment dates are stipulated and such interest from the 
wholly owned subsidiaries are not regular as detailed below: 

Particulars INR  Due Date Extent of delay 

Wholly owned subsidiaries 62,04,187 Prior to 01.04.2021 365 
Total 62,04,187   

 
d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, 
we are of the opinion that no amount is overdue for more than ninety days except for amounts of ₹ 62,04,187, 
details of which are given hereunder. The parties involved are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company and the 
management is monitoring them for ensuring recovery of the interest. 
No of Cases Principal overdues Interest overdues Total overdues Remarks, if any 



 

2                - 62,04,187 62,04,187 Interest 
Total                - 62,04,187 62,04,187  

 
e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, 
we are of the opinion that no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has 
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties. 
 
f) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we 
are of the opinion that the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on 
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, except as under: 
 
Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Party 
Aggregate amount of loans/ advances in 
nature of Loans 

- -  

- Repayable on demands (A) - - 5,74,46,073 
Aggregate does not specify any terms or 
period of repayment (B) 

- -  

Total (A+B) - - 5,74,46,073 
Percentage of Loans/ advances    100% 
 
 (4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with 
the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing 
guarantees and securities, as applicable. 
 
(5) In our Opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted any 
deposit from the public within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 
 
(6) According to the information and explanations given to us Central Government has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of activities 
carried by the Company. Therefore, this clause is not applicable to the given company during the relevant year.  
 
(7) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the company, the company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Income-
tax, Service tax, Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. As explained 
to us, the company did not have any dues on account of Provident fund, ESIC, Sales Tax, Custom Duty and excise 
duty. 
According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above 
were in arrears as at March 31st, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become 
payable. 
 
(8) According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowledge and belief there are 
no transactions that were not recorded in the books of account, and which has been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 
 
(9) a) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, the 
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any 
lender. 
b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report 
that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority. 



 

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not borrowed any 
term loans during the year. 
d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the audit procedures performed by us, and on an 
overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis 
have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 
e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Financial 
Statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on 
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 
f) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by us, we report that 
the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures 
or associate companies. 
 
(10) a) According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. 
b) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, the 
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, 
partially or optionally convertible) during the year. 
 
11) a) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, no 
fraud by the company nor any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the year. 
b) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, no 
report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with Central Government. 
c) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, no 
whistle- blower complaints have been received 
 
12) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, the 
Company is not a Nidhi Company hence, reporting under clause xii of the Order not applicable. 
 
13) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, all 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where ever 
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 
 
14) a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and nature of it business. 
b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under audit. 
 
15) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, the 
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors nor persons connected with them. The 
provisions of section 192 of Companies Act have been complied. 
 
16) a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) a, b and c of the Order is not applicable. 
b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the group (as defined in the Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
 
17) The company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. 
 



 

18) During the year there has not been any resignation of statutory auditors. 
 
19) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based 
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us 
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 
 
20) a) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, 
Schedule VII to the Companies Act is not applicable to the Company. 
b) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, 
subsection (5) and sub-section (6) of section 135 of the Companies Act are not applicable to the Company 
 
21) There have not been any qualifications or adverse remarks 
 
For N K Mittal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 113281W 
 
 
N K Mittal  
(Partner) 
Membership Number: 046785 
UDIN: 22046785AJYAMW5980 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 18th May, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(Referred in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 
our report to the Members of Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited of even date) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 
subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Keerti Knowledge and 
Skills Limited(the “Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.  
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
 

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under Companies Act, 2013.  
 

Auditor’s Responsibility  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) issued by the ICAI and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 
standards and the guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects.  
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s  
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  



 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements. 
 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised  acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements . 
 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  
 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 

Opinion  
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal financial control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the ICAI.  
 

For N K Mittal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm’s Registration Number: 113281W 
 
 (Partner) 
Membership Number: 046785 
UDIN: 22046785AJYAMW5980 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 18th May, 2022 



 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited (“the company”) is a public limited company, incorporated in India having 
its registered office at 26/202, Upper Floor, Anand Nagar, Vakola Bridge, Nehru Road, Santacruz East, Mumbai 
400 055. The equity shares of the Company are listed on NSE Limited. The company is engaged in the field of 
Information Technology related computer services. 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION: 

A. Statement of compliance 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

These standalone or separate financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and 
authorised for issue on 18 May, 2022. 

B. Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency.  

C. Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. The following 
items are measured on each reporting date as under: 

 Defined Benefit plans- plan assets at fair value 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell as asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are 
categorized into Level 1,2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are 
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as 
follows: 

 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
entity can access at the measurement date; 

 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 

D. Use of estimates and judgments 



 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are 
prudent and reasonable. Actual result may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized 
prospectively. 
 
 
Judgments: 
 
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on 
the amounts recognized in the financial statements have been given below: 

 Classification of leases into finance or operating lease 

 Whether an arrangement contains a lease. 

 Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held and 
assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties: 
 
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 
material adjustment in the subsequent period financial statements is included below: 

 Estimation of current and deferred tax expense and asset/ liability. 

 Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment. 

 Estimation of defined benefit obligation. 
 Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions and contingencies. 

 Impairment of trade receivables. 
 

E. Critical accounting estimates and judgments 

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will 
seldom equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of 
judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and 
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of 
these estimated and judgments is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of 
calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements. 
 
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
 

1. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets 
Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The 
charge in respect of the periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected 
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. 



 

The useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets are determined by management at the time the 
asset is acquired. The lives are based on historical experience with similar as well as anticipation of future 
events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. 
 

2. Employee benefits 
Defined benefit plans and other long-term benefits are evaluated with reference to uncertain events and 
based upon actuarial assumptions including among others discount rates, expected rates of return on plan 
assets, expected rates of salary increases, estimated retirement dates, mortality rates. 
 
 
 

3. Revenue Recognition 
The Company assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in 
the contract. Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The Company 
allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless 
there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations. The 
Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in 
time or over a period of time. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded 
in the period in which such losses become probable based on the estimated efforts or costs to complete the 
contract. 

4. Leases 
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. 
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgment in assessing 
the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The discount rate is 
generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of 
leases with similar characteristics. 

5. Loss allowance for receivables 
The Company determines the allowance for credit losses based on historical loss experience adjusted to 
reflect current and estimated future economic conditions. The Company considered current and anticipated 
future economic conditions relating to industries the company deals with and the countries where it 
operates. In calculating expected credit loss, the company has also considered credit reports and other 
related credit information for its customers to estimate the probability of default in future and has taken into 
account estimates of possible effect from the pandemic relating to COVID -19. 

6. Taxes 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to 
determine the amount of deferred tax asset that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the 
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

7. Contingencies 
On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies and 
obligations. Obligations relating to project executions is largely depended upon performance of services by 
respective contractors for contingent losses that are considered Probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an 
accrual in financial statements. Loss contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but 
disclosed as Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is 
remote are not disclosed in the financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognised until the 
contingency has been resolved ad amounts are received or receivable. 



 

 

      3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

A. Current and non-current classification 
 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Assets: An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
 
a) It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating 
cycle; 
 
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;  
 
c) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
 
d) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting date. 
 
Liabilities: A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
 
a) It is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; 
 
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
 
c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
 
d) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its 
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 
 
All other assets/ liabilities are classified as noncurrent. Based on the nature of products and the time 
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in Cash or cash equivalents, the 
Company has ascertained its normal operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of Current / Noncurrent 
classification of assets and liabilities. 
 
B. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 
 
PPE is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty 
credits availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. Property, plant and 
equipment acquired on hire purchase basis are recognized at their cash values. For qualifying assets, 
borrowing costs are capitalized in accordance with the Company's accounting policy. 
 



 

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of PPE 
measured as per I-GAAP less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment on the transition date 
of 1st April, 2019. 
 
PPE not ready for the Ended use on the Balance Sheet date is disclosed as "capital work in-progress. 
 
Depreciation is recognized using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the assets (other than 
freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives specified in 
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by 
technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. 
 
Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption 
of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual values are also 
reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/ residual 
value is accounted on prospective basis. 
 
Depreciation on additions to / deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the period of use. 
 
An item of Property, plant and equipment is derecognized when it is estimated that Company will not 
receive future economic benefits from its use or upon its disposal. Any gains and losses on disposal of such 
item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the 
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 
 

C. Depreciation and amortization 
 
Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual values are determined based on technical 
parameters / assessment, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the 
operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, 
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc. 
 
The estimated useful life of Property, Plant & Equipment is aligned to the useful life specified under 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except useful life for computing depreciation in the following case: 
 
Assets  Useful Life (Years)  

Buildings 30 - 60 

Plant and Machinery  8 - 20 

Office Equipment  5 

Furniture & Fixtures  10 

Vehicles  8 - 10 

Computers  3 

Energy Saving Equipment  15 

Pollution Control Equipment  15 

Electric Installations  10 

 



 

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair                                     
approximation of the period over which the Property, Plant and Equipment are likely to be used.   

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of 
acquisition or installation, and in the case of a new project, from the date of commencement of commercial 
production.  

Depreciation on an item of property, plant and equipment sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped, is provided up to 
the date on which such item of property, plant and equipment is sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped. 

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ 
from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis. 

 
D. Impairment of assets 

 
As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment 
property, intangible assets and investments in subsidiary company to determine whether there is any 
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the said assets are 
tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. The intangible assets with indefinite 
life are tested for impairment each year. 
 
Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Recoverable amount is determined: 
 
a) in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and 
b) in the case of a cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), 
at the higher of the cash generating unit's net selling price and the value in use. 
 
The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the 
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the discount 
rate (pre-tax) is determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the Company suitably adjusted 
for risks specified to the estimated cash flows of the asset 
 
For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable group of assets that 
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of 
assets. 
 
If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 
such deficit is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the 
carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
 
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) 
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss is 
recognized for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 



 

 
E. Financial Instruments 

1) Financial assets 
 
Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 
 
All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Financial assets are subsequently 
classified as measured at 

 amortized cost 

 fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

 fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Company 
changes its business model for managing financial assets. 
 
Derecognition 
 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset. 
 
Impairment of financial assets 
 
The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on: 
 
- Financial assets measured at amortized cost; 
 
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost has 
impaired and provisions are made for impairment accordingly. A financial asset is 'credit impaired' when 
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 
have occurred. 
 
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable 
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and 
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit 
assessment and including forward looking information. 
 
Measurement of expected credit losses 
 
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the 
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in 
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 
 
Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet 



 

 
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets. 
 
Write-off 
 
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that 
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the 
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the 
amounts subject to the write-off. 
 
ii) Financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost unless at initial recognition, they 
are classified as fair value through profit and loss. 
 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss is measured at fair value with all 
changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
Derecognition 
 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. 
 
iii) Offsetting financial instruments 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent 
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, 
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty. 
 

F. Borrowing costs 
 
Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of fixed assets are capitalised as part of cost 
of the assets, up to the date the asset is put to use. Other Borrowing cost is charged to Statement of Profit & 
loss in the year in which they are incurred. 
 

G. Income tax 
 
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in statement of profit or loss except to the 
extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 
 
Current tax 



 

 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year and any 
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects 
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, 
related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable 
right to set off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net 
basis or simultaneously. 
 
Deferred tax 
 
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. 
Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized. The existence of unused tax losses is 
strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent 
losses the Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable 
temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available 
against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets- unrecognized or recognized, are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized /reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer 
probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized. 
 
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset 
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to 
the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income 
tax during the specified period. 
 

H. Inventories 
 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolesces and 
damages as under: 
 
(i) Raw and packing materials, stores and spares including fuel: At Cost on FIFO basis 
 
(ii) Stock in trade and Finished Goods: At Cost plus appropriate overheads 
 
Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in first out (FIFO) basis. 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
 

I. Cash and cash equivalents 
 



 

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with 
banks and other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments 
being subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash 
equivalents. 
 

J. Provision and contingent liabilities  
The Company sets up a provision when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a 
past event and it will probably require an outflow of resources to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting 
the expected future cash flows at a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to 
the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 
             The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. 
             A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation that arises from 
past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events not within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises 
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation or where reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed 
on the basis of judgment of the management/ independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet 
date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate. 
 

K. Revenue recognition  
 
A. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an 
amount that reflects the consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products 
or services. 
 
B. Revenues from Products are recognized at a point in time when control of the goods passes to the 
customer, usually upon delivery of the goods. 
 
C. The Company Presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.  
 
D. Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which may also refer as unbilled 
revenues) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which may also refer to 
as unearned revenues). 
 
E. Government Subsidy  
Subsidy has been recognized by the company on the basis of the notification received from the ministry of 
chemicals and fertilizers from time to time. 
  
F. other Revenue:  
Interest income : 



 

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method (“EIR   that is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the 
net carrying amount of the financial assets.  
 
Rental income  
Rental income arising from operating leases or on properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over 
the lease terms and is included in other non-operating income in the statement of profit and loss. 
 
Insurance claims  
Insurance claims are accounted for as when admitted by the concerned authority. 
 

L. Earnings per share 
   
Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity 
shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
financial year. 
Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity 
shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 
earning per earning per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity share that could have 
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
 

4. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and 
the 
related disclosures. 
 
Significant management judgements 

a) Recognition of deferred tax assets – The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based 

on an 
assessment of the probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets 
can be 
utilized. 

b) Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets – The evaluation of applicability of indicators of 

impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in 
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

c) Contingent liabilities– At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and 

legal 
aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. 
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement. 

d) Provisions – At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal 

aspects, the company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. 
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement. 



 

e) Impact of Covid-19 Outbreak – The extent to which the Covid-19 pandemic will impact the Company 

will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among other things, any new 
information concerning the severity of the Covid-19 pandemic and any further action by the Government or 
the Company to contain its spread or mitigate its impact. 
 
Significant estimates 

a) Impairment of financial assets – At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed 

over 
expected life, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates, the management assesses the 
expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances. Further, management also considers the 
factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with 
industry and country in which the customer operates. 

b) Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets – Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of 

depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. 
Uncertainties in 
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets. 

 



Note As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
PARTICULARS No (Audited) (Audited)

 ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets

a) Property, Plant & Equipment 5 784,759                                 969,927                               
b) Right to Use Assets  
c) Intangible Assets 6 487,800                                 503,400                               
d) Capital work in Progress 7 2,437,845                              2,406,275                            
e) Financial Assets

i. Investments 8 200,000                                 6,200,000                            
ii. Loans & Advances 9 57,446,073                            48,797,055                          
iii. Others 10 35,280                                   7,036,769                            

f) Deffered Tax Assets (Net) 11 259,746                                 261,836                               
g) Other non-current assets 12 -                                         -                                       

61,651,503                            66,175,262                          
2 Current Assets

a) Inventories -                                         -                                       
b) Financial Assets

 i. Investments -                                       
 ii. Trade Receivables 13 8,729,347                              30,072,695                          

iii. Cash and cash equivalent 14 5,992,404                              735,512                               
iv. Bank Balances -                                       
v. Loans and Advances 15 9,087,267                              6,518,456                            
vi. Others 16 97,500                                   67,500                                 

c) Other current assets 17 497,394                                 3,256,457                            
  24,403,911                            40,650,619                          

Total Assets 86,055,414                            106,825,881                        

   
 

1 Equity  
a) Equity Share Capital 18 101,890,980                          101,890,980                        
b) Other equity 19 -18,337,286                           2,534,672                            

  83,553,694                            104,425,652                        
2 Liabilities

Non-current liabilites
a) Financial Liabilities

i. Borrowings -                                       
ii. Others -                                       

b) Provisions -                                       
c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) -                                       
d) Other Non-current liabilities -                                       

-                                         -                                       
Current Liabilities

a) Financial Liabilities  
 i. Borrowings -                                       

ii. Lease Liability -                                       
iii. Trade Payables 20 192,188                                 403,889                               
iv. Others 21 2,102,211                              1,856,558                            

b) Other current liabilities 22 207,321                                 139,782                               
c) Provisions
d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 23 -                                         -                                       

 2,501,720                              2,400,229                            

Total Equity and Liabilities 86,055,414                            106,825,881                        

Significant Accounting Policies "3"
The accompanying Notes 2, 4 to 40 are an integral part of this balance sheet.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
N K Mittal & Associates Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane Mr. Pandurang Patekar
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 046785  

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, May 18th , 2022 Mumbai, May 18th , 2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
Statement of Audited Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022



31.03.2022 31.03.2021
PARTICULARS (Audited) (Audited)

 Revenue from operation 24 31,965,989.41                    12,043,462                   
 Other Income 25 3,265,676.59                      5,840,823                     
 Total Revenue 35,231,666.00                    17,884,285                   
 Expenses
 Cost of materials consumed -                                

Purchases of stock in trade -                                
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress
and stock in trade -                                
Employee benefit expenses 26 4,915,071.00                      4,312,880                     
Finance costs 27 69,213.52                           219,585                         
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 28 290,768.00                         368,770                         
Other expenses 29 50,826,480.14                    15,262,669                   
Total Expenses 56,101,532.66                    20,163,904                   

 Profit before Exceptional Items & Tax (3-4) -20,869,867                        -2,279,619                    
 Exceptional items -                                
 Pofit / (loss) before tax -20,869,867                        -2,279,619                    
 Tax expenses 30

Current Tax -                                
Deferred Tax 2,090.00                             748.00                           
Short/ (excess) tax provision of earlier years -                                
Total tax expenses  (Net) 2,090.00                             748.00                           

 Net Profit / (loss) for the year -20,871,957                        -2,280,367                    
 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss -                                
-                              

 Other Comprehensive Income/ Loss (net of taxes) -                                
 Total Comprehensive Income -20,871,957                        -2,280,367                    
 Earnings Per Share 31

a) Basic (in Rs) -2.05 -0.22                             
b) Diluted (in Rs) -2.05 -0.22                             

Significant Accounting Policies "3"
The accompanying Notes 2, 4 to 40 are an integral part of this balance sheet.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
N K Mittal & Associates Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane Mr. Pandurang Patekar
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 046785  

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, May 18th , 2022 Mumbai, May 18th , 2022

 

Less : Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Note 
No

KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
Statement of Profit And Loss for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022.

 Year Ended



A. Equity Share Capital

No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 10,189,098.00      101,890,980.00       3,286,806               32,868,060.00        
Changes in equity share capital during the year 6,902,292               69,022,920.00        
Balance at the end of the reporting period 10,189,098.00      101,890,980.00       10,189,098             101,890,980.00      

B. Other Equity
Total

Securities 
Premium Retained Earnings

Securities 
Premium Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year
01.04.2020 -                        -                           61,260,012             12,577,947             73,837,959             

Movement during the year -                        -                           -61,260,012           -10,043,275            -71,303,287           

Balance at the end of the reporting period
31.03.2021 -                        2,534,672                -                         2,534,672               2,534,672               

Movement during the year -                        -20,871,958             -                         -                          -20,871,958           

Balance at the end of the reporting period
31.03.2022 -                        -18,337,285             -                         -                          -18,337,285           

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
N K Mittal & Associates Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane Mr. Pandurang Patekar
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 046785   

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, May 18th , 2022 Mumbai, May 18th , 2022

KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

-                       

-                       

Particulars

Reserve and Surplus Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

-                       

-                       

-                       

Reserve and Surplus

Particulars
As at 31st March 2021As at 31st March 2022



KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
Audited Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2022

Particulars

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit / (Loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (20,869,867)    (2,279,619)          
Adjusted for :
Depreciation 290,768                 368,770               
Sundry debtors written off 27,214,264            -                       
Loss on sale of Asset 3,942,732              -                       
Interest received (3,265,677)             28,182,087       (5,840,823)           (5,472,053)           

7,312,221         (7,751,672)           

Operating  Profit / Loss before Working Capital Changes 7,312,221       (7,751,672)          
Changes in Working Capital
Adjusted for increase / decrease in operating Assets :
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (5,870,915)             (5,735,024)           
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Asset 2,759,062              (1,064,451)           
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans and Advances 7,001,489              670,011               
(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans and Advances & Others (2,598,811)             (1,104,780)           
(Increase)/Decrease in Non Current Asset 2,959,731            
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  -                       

Adjusted for increase / decrease in operating Liabilities :
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables (211,701)                179,712               
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilites Financial Liability (Others) 245,653                 1,043,299            
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liability 67,539                   (1,432,552)           
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions (762,535)              

Cash Generated from / (used in) Operations 1,392,316       (5,246,589)          
 
Tax Paid / (Refund) -                        
Net Cash from Operating Activities 8,704,536       (12,998,261)        

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in shares 2,057,000              -                       
FD Placed (2,299,393)             12,636,851          
Purchase of Fixed Assets (140,000)                (116,000)              
Sale of Fixed Assets 18,430                   -                       

(363,963)           12,520,851          
Net Cash generated / (used in) Investing Activities (363,963)         12,520,851         

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of Shares -                        -                       
Premium Received on issue of shares -                         -                       
Loan Given (8,649,018)             (8,081,208)           
Interest received on loan given 3,265,677              5,840,823            

(2,240,385)           
Net Cash from Financing Activities (5,383,341)      (2,240,385)          

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,957,232       (2,717,795)          
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 340,075          3,057,870           
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,297,307       340,075              

 

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
N K Mittal & Associates Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane Mr. Pandurang Patekar
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 046785   

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, May 18th , 2022 Mumbai, May 18th , 2022

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
(Audited) (Audited)

 



PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Note 5. Tangible Assets

Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Written Off Total upto

   PARTICULAR  As at 01.04.2021 During During  As at 31.03.2022 01.04.2021  For the year 
 During The 

year 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021 
The year The year

Air Conditioner 353,663                            -                         -                   353,663                201,871              21,114             -                     222,985              130,678                151,792                
-                        

Furniture  Fixtures 2,445,813                         -                         -                   2,445,813            1,730,330           129,502           -                     1,859,832           585,981                715,483                
-                        

Office Equipments 429,252                            -                         -                   429,252                378,055              7,122               -                     385,177              44,075                  51,197                  
-                        

Computer 5,325,462                         -                         -                   5,325,462            5,284,293           26,002             -                     5,310,295           15,167                  41,169                  
-                        

Electrical Equipment 51,000                              -                         -                   51,000                  50,043                132                  -                     50,175                825                       957                       
-                        

Cycle 2,375                                -                         -                   2,375                    2,375                  -                     2,375                  -                        -                        

EPBX System 46,872                              -                         -                   46,872                  40,911                828                  -                     41,739                5,133                    5,961                    

Camera & Accessories 19,123                              -                         -                   19,123                  15,755                468                  -                     16,223                2,900                    3,368                    

 T O T A L 8,673,560                        -                        -                 8,673,560          7,703,633         185,168         -                    7,888,801         784,759              969,927              

Note 6. Intangible Assets

Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Total upto

   PARTICULAR  As at 01.04.2021 During During  As at 31.03.2022  01.04.2021  For the year Adjustment  31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021 

The year The year

Trademark 418,089                            90,000                    508,089               389,689              10,600             -                     400,289              107,800                28,400                  

Intellectual Property Rights 950,000                            -                         -                   950,000               475,000              95,000             -                     570,000              380,000                475,000                

 T O T A L 1,368,089                        90,000                  -                 1,458,089          864,689            105,600         -                    970,289            487,800              503,400              

Note 7. Capital Work in Progress

Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Total upto

   PARTICULAR  As at 01.04.2021 During During  As at 31.03.2022  01.04.2021  For the year Adjustment  31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021 

The year The year

E Application and E-Programe 835,075                            50,000                    18,430             866,645               -                      -                   -                     -                      866,645                835,075                

Portal for recruitment training and 
Placement 1,571,200                        -                         -                   1,571,200            -                      -                   -                     -                      1,571,200             1,571,200             

 T O T A L 2,406,275                        50,000                  18,430           2,437,845          -                    -                 -                    -                    2,437,845           2,406,275           

a) Capital Ageing Schedule 

CWIP for a period of Projects in Progress Total
Less than 1 Year 31,570                              31,570                    
1-2 Years 98,000                              98,000                    
2-3 Years 151,000                            151,000                  
More than 3 Years 2,157,275                         2,157,275               
Total 2,437,845                         2,437,845               

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK



PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Note 5. Tangible Assets

Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Written Off Total upto

   PARTICULAR  As at 01.04.2020 During During  As at 31.03.2021 01.04.2020  For the year 
 During The 

year 31.03.2021  As at 31.03.2021  As at 31.03.2020 
The year The year

Air Conditioner 353,663                        -                        -                  353,663              177,345             24,526            -                    201,871             151,792               176,318               
-                      

Furniture  Fixtures 2,445,813                      -                        -                  2,445,813           1,572,206          158,124          -                    1,730,330          715,483               873,607               
-                      

Office Equipments 429,252                        -                        -                  429,252              369,783             8,272              -                    378,055             51,197                 59,469                
-                      

Computer 5,325,462                      -                        -                  5,325,462           5,213,709          70,584            -                    5,284,293          41,169                 111,753               
-                      

Electrical Equipment 51,000                          -                        -                  51,000                49,887               156                 -                    50,043               957                      1,113                  
-                      

Cycle 2,375                            -                        -                  2,375                  2,375                 -                  -                    2,375                 -                      -                      

EPBX System 46,872                          -                        -                  46,872                39,947               964                 -                    40,911               5,961                   6,925                  

Camera & Accessories 19,123                          -                        -                  19,123                15,211               544                 -                    15,755               3,368                   3,912                  

 T O T A L 8,673,560                      -                       -                8,673,560         7,440,463        263,170        -                   7,703,633        969,927             1,233,097          

Note 6. Intangible Assets

Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Total upto

   PARTICULAR  As at 01.04.2020 During During  As at 31.03.2021  01.04.2020  For the year Adjustment  31.03.2021  As at 31.03.2021  As at 31.03.2020 

The year The year

Trademark 400,089                        18,000                   418,089              379,089             10,600            -                    389,689             28,400                 21,000                

Intellectual Property Rights 950,000                        -                        -                  950,000              380,000             95,000            -                    475,000             475,000               570,000               

 T O T A L 1,350,089                      18,000                  -                1,368,089         759,089           105,600        -                   864,689           503,400             591,000             

Note 7. Capital Work in Progress

Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Total upto

   PARTICULAR  As at 01.04.2020 During During  As at 31.03.2021  01.04.2020  For the year Adjustment  31.03.2021  As at 31.03.2021  As at 31.03.2020 

The year The year

E Application and E-Programe 737,075                        98,000                   835,075              -                    -                  -                    -                    835,075               737,075               

Portal for recruitment training and 
Placement 1,571,200                      -                        -                  1,571,200           -                    -                  -                    -                    1,571,200            1,571,200            

 T O T A L 2,308,275                      98,000                  -                2,406,275         -                  -                -                   -                  2,406,275          2,308,275          

a) Capital Ageing Schedule 

CWIP for a period of Projects in Progress Total
Less than 1 Year 98,000                           98,000                   
1-2 Years 151,000                         151,000                 
2-3 Years 1,357,208                      1,357,208              
More than 3 Years 800,067                         800,067                 
Total 2,406,275                      2,406,275              

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK



Note 8. INVESTMENT (Non Current) As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Investment in Subsidiary and wholly owned Company*

Shares of Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited 100,000                                        100,000                             
(10,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)

Shares of Keerti Institute India Private Limited 100,000                                        100,000                             
(10,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)

Shares of Arnold Holding Limited
(7,50,000 shares of Rs. 8/- each) -                                               6,000,000                          

200,000                                        6,200,000                          
* Refer Note 35
Note 9. LOANS AND ADVANCES (Non Current) As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

Considered good - Unsecured
Loans and advances to related parties*

      Loan to Keerti Institute India Pvt Ltd 32,748,940                                   27,826,722                        
      Loan to Keerti Tutorial India Pvt Ltd 24,697,133                                   20,970,333                        

57,446,073                                   48,797,055                        
* Refer Note 35
a) Loans and advances to promoters, Directors, KMP's and related party
Loans or Advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act,
2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are : 

Type of Borrower Outstanding Loans % to (A)
Promoters -                                                
Directors -                                                
KMPs -                                               
Related Parties 57,446,073                                   100                                   
Total Loans and Advances to Promoters, Directors, KMP and Related 
Parties 57,446,073                                    
Total Loans and Advances in the nature of Loan and Advances (A) 57,446,073                                   

Type of Borrower Outstanding Loans % to (A)
Promoters -                                                
Directors -                                                
KMPs -                                               
Related Parties 48,797,055                                   100                                   
Total Loans and Advances to Promoters, Directors, KMP and Related 
Parties 48,797,055                                    
Total Loans and Advances in the nature of Loan and Advances (A) 48,797,055                                   

Note 10. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

Others

      Other Advances 7,000,000                          
      Security Deposit 35,280                                          36,769                              

35,280.00                                     7,036,769                          
 
Note 11. DEFFERED TAX ASSETS (Net) As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

      Deffered Tax 259,746                                        261,836                             
259,746                                        261,836                             

Note 12. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSET As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

      Preliminary Expenses to the extent not written off -                                               -                                    

-                                    

Note 13.TRADE RECEIVABLES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

Considered good - Unsecured 8,729,347                                     30,072,695                        
Less:
Allowance for Bad and doubtfull debts -                                               -                                    

8,729,347                                     30,072,695                        

Ageing of Trade receivable as on March 31, 2022

KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2022

As at 31st March 2022

As at 31st March 2021



Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 7,667,347                                    -                                  -                      -                            7,667,347        
ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful -                                              -                                  -                      -                            -                   
iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good -                                              -                                  -                      1,062,000                 1,062,000        
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful -                                              -                                  -                      -                            -                   

7,667,347                                    -                                  -                      1,062,000                 8,729,347        

Ageing of Trade receivable as on March 31, 2021

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 29,010,695                                  -                                  -                      -                            29,010,695      
ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful -                                              -                                  -                      -                            -                   
iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good -                                              -                                  -                      1,062,000                 1,062,000        
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful -                                              -                                  -                      -                            -                   

29,010,695                                  -                                  -                      1,062,000                 30,072,695      

Note 14.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

       Cash in Hand 644,893.94                                    11,385                              
       Balances in Bank 2,652,679.56                                 328,690                             
       Fixed Deposit with bank 2,694,830.00                                 395,437                              

5,992,403.50                                 735,512                             

Note 15. LOANS AND ADVANCES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

     Interest Receivable* 9,087,267                                     6,518,456                          

9,087,266.73                                 6,518,456                          
* Refer Note 35
Note 16. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

      Advances 67,500                                          67,500                              
      Others 30,000                                          -                                    
      Prepaid Expenses -                                               -                                    

97,500                                          67,500                              

Note 17. OTHER CURRENT ASSET As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

      Preliminary Expenses to the extent not written off 160,425                                        2,815,360                          
      Balance with Revenue Authority 336,969                                        441,096                             

497,394                                        3,256,457                          

Outstanding for following period the due date of payments
Particulars

Particulars
Outstanding for following period the due date of payments



Note 18. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
A) Authorised,Issued,Subscribed and paid up Share Capital 
and par value per share
Authorised Share Capital
1,10,000,00 Equity shares of Rs 10/- each 110,000,000.00                                  110,000,000                      

110,000,000.00                                  110,000,000                      

Issued,subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
1,01,89,098 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each fully paid up.                                   101,890,980.00 101,890,980                    

101,890,980.00                                 101,890,980                    

B) Reconciliation of no. of shares As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Opening 10,189,098                                        3,286,806                        
Add: Bonus shares issued during the year                                                        -   6,902,292                        
Add: Prefrential shares issued during the year                                                        -   -                                   
Add: Issued during the year                                                        -   -                                   
Closing 10,189,098                                        10,189,098                      

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

In Equity Shares
Sudhakar Sonawane
No of Shares 6,125,685                                           6,125,685                           
% Holding In Class 60.12% 60.12%

Note 19. OTHER EQUITY As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

Securities Premium Account
At the beginning of the year -                                                      61,260,012                        
Movement during the year -                                                      61,260,012-                        
Balance at the end of the year -                                                      -                                     

Surplus in  Profit and loss Account
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,534,672                                           12,577,947                        
Add: Profit for the year -20,869,867                                        2,280,367-                          

18,335,196-                                         10,297,580                        
Less: Appropriations
         Issue of Bonus Shares to Shareholders -                                                     7,762,908                          
         Proposed Dividend (Including Corporate Dividend Tax) -                                     
         Deferred Tax 2,090                                                  -                                     

2,090                                                 7,762,908                        

Balance at the end of the year 18,337,286-                                         2,534,672                          
(18,337,286)                                       2,534,672                          

Note 20. TRADE PAYABLES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

Trade Payables for expenses & Services*   
Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises                                       -   
Total outstanding due to creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 192,188                                                                           403,889    

192,188                                             403,889                           
* Refer Note 35
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises : Refer Note 39

Ageing of Trade Payable as on March 31, 2022

Particulars
Outstanding for following period the due date of payments

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

The Company has not received the required information from Suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act 2006. Hence, disclosure relating to amounts unpaid  as at the period end together with interest paid / payble  as required under 
the said Act have not been made.

The Company has issued Bonus Shares to its existing Shareholders of the Company in the ratio of 21:10 alloted on 02nd July, 2020 held at
Board Meeting on 20th May, 2020.

KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2022

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares entitled to one vote per
share.
The company has made Preferential Allotment of 4,00,000 Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up for cash at a price of
Rs.80/- per equity share (including share premium of Rs.70/- per equity shares) aggregating to Rs. 3.20 Crores held at Board Meeting on 28th
January, 2020.



Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
MSME -                                                    -                                   -                          -                          -          
Others 127,178                                              65,010                               -                           -                           192,188     
Disputed - MSME -                                                     -                                     -                           -                           -            
Disputed - Others -                                                     -                                     -                           -                           -            

127,178                                             65,010                             -                          -                         192,188   

Ageing of Trade Payable as on March 31, 2021

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
MSME -                                                    -                                   -                          -                          -          
Others 211,441                                              192,448                             -                           -                           403,889     
Disputed - MSME -                                                     -                                     -                           -                           -            
Disputed - Others -                                                     -                                     -                           -                           -            

211,441                                             192,448                           -                          -                         403,889   

Note 21. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Employee Benefit provisions

       Salaries payable 655,211                                              1,001,558                           
Others
       Liability For Expenses 1,447,000                                           855,000                              

 2,102,211                                           1,856,558                          

Note 22. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 
       Statutory Dues 207,321                                              139,782                             

 207,321                                              139,782                             

Note 23. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET) As at 31st March 2021
 
       Provision for taxation (Net of advamce tax) -                                                     -                                     

 -                                                     -                                     

Particulars

Particulars
Outstanding for following period the due date of payments



Note 24. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
For the year ended 31st March 

2022
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

Gross Sales and Royalty Receipts 31,965,989                               12,043,462                         

31,965,989                                   12,043,462                         

Note 25.OTHER INCOME
For the year ended 31st March 

2022
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

      Interest received on Loan given to related parties* 3,203,422                                     5,544,289                           
      Interest on IT refund 38,565                                          
      Other Interest 23,689                                          296,534                              
      Other Income -                                      

3,265,677                                     5,840,823                           

Note 26. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
For the year ended 31st March 

2022
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

      Salaries Wages and Bonus 3,119,055                                     3,069,330                           
      Staff Welfare Expenses 195,516                                        21,050                                
      Director Remuneration 1,600,500                                     1,222,500                           

4,915,071                                     4,312,880                           

Note 27. FINANCE EXPENSES
For the year ended 31st March 

2022
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

       Interest paid 66,213                                          217,381                              
       Bank Charges 3,001                                            2,204                                  
  

69,214                                          219,585                              

Note 28. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION CHARGES
For the year ended 31st March 

2022
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

       Depreciation & Amortization 290,768                                        368,770                               
290,768                                        368,770                               

Note 29. OTHER EXPENSES
For the year ended 31st March 

2022
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

         Payment made to auditors  
                               - Audit fees 200,000                                        200,000                              
         Advertisment Expenses 869,335                                        1,851,352                           
         Computer Education Related Expenses 401,895                                        1,041,836                           
         Conveyance & Travelling 528,757                                        108,271                              
         Electricity Charges 178,510                                        144,240                              
         Franchise Expenses * 12,137,818                                   4,582,717                           
         ITC Disallowed 184,682                                        237,344                              

 

* Refer Note 35

KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2022



         Insurance Expenses 5,129                                            5,129                                  
         Issuer Fees 45,000                                          -                                      
         Legal & Professional Charges 893,350                                        1,111,669                           
         Loss on Sale of Shares 3,942,732                                     -                                      
         Listing Fees 341,951                                        343,900                              
         Provision for Bad debts 27,214,264                                   1,158,691                           
         Meeting Expenses 30,190                                          45,000                                
         Office Expenses 668,227                                        564,435                              
         Preliminary Expenses written/off 2,654,935                                     2,885,081                           
         Repairs & Maintenance 122,632                                        -                                      
         Rent Rates & Taxes 378,587                                        899,107                              
         Telephone Expenses 28,487                                          83,898                                

50,826,480                                   15,262,669                         

 

Note 30. TAX EXPENSES
For the year ended 31st March 

2022
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

         Current Tax -                                                -                                      
         Tax of previous year -                                                -                                      
         Deferred Tax 2090 748
 
 2090 748                                     

Note 31. EARNING PER SHARE
For the year ended 31st March 

2022
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

         Profit after Taxation -20,871,956.66                             -2,280,367                          
         Weighted Average Number of ordinary shares outstanding 10,189,098                                   10,189,098                          
         Earnings per share
          - Basic (in Rs.) -2.05 -0.22                                   
          - Diluted (In Rs.) -2.05 -0.22                                   

Note 32. CONTINGENT LIABILITES AND OTHER MATTERS
For the year ended 31st March 

2022
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021
 
         a) Contigent Liabilites -                                                -                                      
         b) Commitments -                                                -                                      

-                                                -                                      

*Refer Note 35



Note 33 : FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS- FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
I. The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows: 

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables -                   -                    8,729,347         -                    -                30,072,695       
Cash and Cash Equivalent -                   -                    5,992,404         -                    -                735,512            
Loans & Advances -                   -                    9,087,267         -                    -                6,518,456         
Other Financial Assets -                   -                    97,500              -                    -                67,500              
Other Current Assets -                   -                    497,394            -                    -                3,256,457         
Total Financial Assets -                 -                 24,403,911       -                  -              40,650,619       
Financial Liabilities
Trade payable -                   -                    192,188            -                    -                403,889            
Other Financial Liabilities -                   -                    2,102,211         -                    -                1,856,558         
Other Current Liabilities -                   -                    207,321            -                    -                139,782            
Current tax Liabilities (Net) -                   -                    -                       -                    -                -                    
Total Financial Liabilities -                 -                 2,501,720         -                  -              2,400,229         

II. Financial Risk Management
The company has exposure to the following risk arising from fiancial instruments:

- Credit Risk
- Liquidity Risk; and
- Market Risk

i. Risk management framework
The company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management 
framework. The board of directors has established the processes to ensure that executive management controls risks through the 
mechanism of property defined framework.
The Company's risk management polices are establised to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
risk limites and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed by the 
board annually to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations.
The Company's Audit Committee oversees compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the 
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight 
role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to its Audit Committee.

ii. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and losn given.
The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade and other receivables
The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management 
also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and 
country in which customers operate.
The Company Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness
before the company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. 

iii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as fas as 
possible , that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilites when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damange to the Company's reputation.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the cash flows generated from 

As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars



operations to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, 
the Company's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities and cash
and cash equivalent on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out in accordance with practice and limits set by the 
company. In additon, the Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering 
the level of liquid assets nacessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidty ratios against internal and external requlatory
requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

a) Maturities of financial liablites
The following are the remaing contracutal maturities of financial liabilites at the reporting date.

Carrying 
Amount Total

Contractual 
cash flows : 

With in 1 Years
Carrying 
Amount Total

Contractual 
cash flows : 
With in 1 

Years
Financial Liabilities
Trade payable 192,188            192,188            192,188            403,889             403,889         403,889            
Other Financial Liabilities 2,102,211         2,102,211         2,102,211         1,856,558          1,856,558      1,856,558         
Other Current Liabilities 207,321            207,321            207,321            139,782             139,782         139,782            
Current tax Liabilities (Net) -                   -                    -                       -                    -                -                    
Total Financial Liabilities 2,501,720      2,501,720      2,501,720         2,400,229       2,400,229   2,400,229         

iv. Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices which will affect the 
Company' s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market exposures withing acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
Currency risk : As company does not deals in foreign currencies, therefore this risk mitigates for the company.
Commodity risk: As company deals in services sector , therefore this risk mitigates for the company.
Interest Risk: As the Company does not have any borrowings from outsider, therefore this risk mitigates for the company.

Note 34 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company manages its capital to ensure that is will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Compnay consits of Zero debt and having only equity and 
internal accurals.
The company's net debt equity ratio is as follows:

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Net debt 0 0
Equity 83,553,694    104,425,652  
Debt/ Equity ratio -                 -                 

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021



Note No. 35 Related Party transactions
Details of related parties:

Description of relationship Names of related parties
Sudhakar Sonawane (MD)
Pandurang Patekar (Director)
Archana Sanjay Saini (Director)
Manish Heeralal Chandak (Director)
Rajvirendra Singh (Director)
Tanual Raju Sonawane Director)
Soniya (Director)
Vinod Narsale (CFO)
P V Vinod (COO)
Priyanka Pandey (CS) from 21.10.2021
Mahipal Chauhan (CS) upto 20.10.2021

 Keerti Institute India Private Limited 
 Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited 
 Sangeeta Sonawane 
 Santosh Sonawane 
 Nutan Sonawane 

Particulars As at 31st March  2022 As at 31st March, 2021

Non Current Assets : Investment
Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited                                       100,000 100,000                                                     
Keerti Institute India Private Limited                                       100,000 100,000                                                     

Non Current Assets : Loans & Advances
Keerti Institute India Private Limited 4,922,218                                   2,785,208                                                  
Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited                                    3,726,800 5,296,000                                                  

Other Income
Interest received on Loan
 Keerti Institute India Private Limited                                    1,858,014 3,271,802                                                  
 Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited                                    1,345,408 2,272,487                                                  

Payment to key Management Personnel
Remuneration to directors
Sudhakar Sonawane (MD)                                    1,202,500 1,050,000                                                  
Pandurang Patekar (Director)                                       398,000 172,500                                                     

Indirect Expenses
Royalty expenses
Keerti Institute India Pvt Ltd                                  12,137,818 4,582,717                                                  
 
Sitting fees
Archana Sanjay Saini                                         15,000 12,500                                                       
Manish Heeralal Chandak                                         17,500 5,000                                                         
Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit                                         17,500 15,000                                                       
Tanul Raju Sonawane                                         17,500 12,500                                                       
    -                                                             
Rent    -                                                             
Sudhakar Sonawane                                       186,000 211,250                                                     
Sangeeta Sonawane                                       186,000 211,250                                                     
    -                                                             
Salary    -                                                             
Santosh Sonawane                                       290,790 168,850                                                     
Nutan Sonawane                                                 -   27,767                                                       

Details of transactions with  related parties  as on 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 :-

KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Wholly owned Subsidiary of Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited
Wholly owned Subsidiary of Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited

 Relative of Director's 

Note: Related parties have been identified by the Management.      



Vinod Narsale                                       675,590 593,000                                                     
P V Vinod                                       811,770 516,335                                                     
Priyanka Pandey                                       187,420 -                                                             
Mahipal Chauhan                                       202,500 152,250                                                     

Particulars As at 31st March  2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Sitting Fees (payable)
Archana Sanjay Saini                                         17,500 12,500                                                       
Manish Heeralal Chandak                                         17,500 5,000                                                         
Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit                                         17,500 15,000                                                       
Tanul Raju Sonawane                                           2,500 -                                                             

Salary (payable)
Vinod Narsale                                         39,000 38,700                                                       
P V Vinod                                         60,000 59,700                                                       
Mahipal Chauhan                                                 -   19,800                                                       
Priyanka Pandey                                         35,000 -                                                             
Santosh Sonawane                                         13,050 -                                                             

Remuneration to directors (payable)
Sudhakar Sonawane (MD)                                       200,000 247,332                                                     
Pandurang Patekar (Director)                                         19,500 12,500                                                       

Rent (Payable)
Sudhakar Sonawane                                       186,000 211,250                                                     
Sangeeta Sonawane                                       186,000 211,250                                                     

Non Current Assets : Loans & Advances (Receivable)
Keerti Institute India Private Limited                                  32,748,940 27,826,772                                                
Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited                                  24,697,133 20,970,333                                                

Note 36: SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company's business activity falls within a single reportable business segment, viz, Information Technology.

Balance Outstanding of Related Party as at 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021



Note 37 : Ratio Analysis

Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021 Variance in %

A) Current Ratio
Current Assets 24,403,911                           40,650,619                            
Current Liabilities 2,501,720                             2,400,229                              

9.75                                      16.94                                     16.36
B) Debt Equity Ratio
Debt -                                        -                                        
Total Shareholders Equity 83,553,694                           104,425,652                          

-                                        -                                        -                       
C) Debt Service Coverage Ratio
EBITDA less Other Income -23,778,562                          -7,751,672                            
Total Debts -                                        -                                        

-                                        -                                        -                       
D) Return Equity Ratio
Net Profir after tax -20,871,957                          -2,279,619                            
Total Shareholders Equity 83,553,694                           104,425,652                          

-24.98% -2.18% -11.46
E) Inventory turnover ratio *
COGS -                                        -                                        
Average Inventory -                                        -                                        

-                                        -                                        -                       
F) Trade Receivable turnover ratio
Revenue from Operation 31,965,989                           12,043,462                            
Average Trade receivable 19,401,021                           27,205,183                            

1.65                                      0.44                                       -3.28
G) Trade payable turnover ratio
Purchase -                                        -                                        
Average Trade payable 298,038                                314,033                                 

-                                        -                                        -                       
H) Net Capital turnover ratio
Revenue from Operation 31,965,989                           12,043,462                            
Total Shareholders Equity 83,553,694                           104,425,652                          

0.38                                      0.12                                       -3.20
I) Net Profir Ratio
Net Profir after tax -20,871,957                          -2,279,619                            
Total Revenue 35,231,666                           17,884,285                            

-59.24% -12.75% -4.78
J) Return on capital employed
EBIT less Other Income -24,069,330                          -8,120,442                            
Total Assets- Current Liabilites 83,553,694                           104,425,652                          

-28.81% -7.78% -3.78

* As the company is in the services industry therefore there will be no inventory 



Note No 38 : Pursuant to outbreak of coronavirus disease (Covid-19) worldwide and its declaration as global pandemic, the Government 
of India, declared lockdown on March 24, 2020, followed by several restrictions imposed by the governments across the globe on the travel, 
goods movement; and transportation considering public health and safety measures. The Company has considered internal and external 
information while finalizing various estimates in relation to its financial statements upto the date of approval of the financial statements by 
the Board of Directors and has not identified any material impact on the carrying value of assets, liabilities or provisions. The company also 
has not experienced any difficulties with respect to market demand, collections or liquidity. The Board of Directors have also considered the 
impact of Covid -19 on the business for the foresseable future and have concluded that the company has sufficient resources to continue as 
a going concern. The actual impact of the global health pandemic may be different from thatwhich has been estimated, as the COVID-19
situation evolved in India and globally. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Note No 39 :Micro and Small Enterprises
Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

Amount due to vendor                                                   -                                                      -   

a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon                                                   -                                                      -   

b) the amount of interest paid                                                   -                                                      -   

c) the amount of interest due and payable                                                   -                                                      -   

d) the amount of interest accured and remaining unpaid                                                   -                                                      -   

e) the amount further interest remaining due and payable                                                   -                                                      -   

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
N K Mittal & Associates Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane Mr. Pandurang Patekar
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 046785  

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, May 18th , 2022 Mumbai, May 18th , 2022

Note No 40 :Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification / 
disclosure.

 



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBER OF KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED  

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion  

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Keerti Knowledge and Skills 
Limited (hereinafter referred to as  the “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and 

its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of changes in equity 
and the statement of cash flows ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “Consolidated financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013(the “Act”)in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) And other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022, the consolidated loss and total comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.  

Basis for opinion  

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibility under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of ethics issued by the Institute 
of Charted Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the ICAI’s Code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated financial statements. 

Key audit matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the Consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Other Information   

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of directors is responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s 
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 



In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management’s Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements  

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash 
flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, managements is responsible for assessing the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing , as a applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected on influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
Consolidated financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  



 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 
to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in Internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charges with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulations 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.  
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

1) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:  
 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the relevant books of account.  

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
section 133 of the Act.  

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.  

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Group’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting.                             

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:  



i. The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position as on 
31st March 2022. 

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Group. 

iv. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to 
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ‘Intermediaries’, with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

v. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ‘Funding Parties’, with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

vi. Based on our audit procedures, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub-clause (iv) and (v) contain any material mis-statements 

vii. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year. 
 

For N K Mittal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 113281W 
 

N K Mittal  
(Partner) 
Membership Number: 046785 
UDIN: 22046785AJYASC7260  
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 18th May, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Act. 

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year 
ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KEERTI 
KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) in 
conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statement of the Company for the year ended on that 
date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are 
incorporated in India, to the extent applicable, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

3. Our Responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the 
standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 
 

4. Our Audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

  
5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, during the audit of Holding Company, is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting; for providing an opinion on the internal financial controls system of the Subsidiary 
Companies which are not incorporated in India (Foreign Subsidiaries) we have relied upon the audit opinion 
given by their respective auditors in reference to the same. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

6.  A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purpose in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
controls over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transaction and dispositions of the assets of 



the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the 
Management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

8. In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies Incorporated in 
India, to the extent applicable, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2022, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
For N K MITTAL & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 113281W 
 
 
CA N K MITTAL 
(Partner) 
Membership Number: 046785 
UDIN: 22046785AJYASC7260 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 18.05.2022. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited (“the Holding”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
together referred to as “the Group”) is a Public Limited Company, incorporated in India having its registered office at 
26/202, Upper Floor, Anand Nagar, Vakola Bridge, Nehru Road, Santacruz East, Mumbai 400055. The equity shares 
of the Group are listed on NSE Limited.  

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION: 

A. Statement of compliance 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and authorised for issue 
on 18 May, 2022. 

B. Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Group’s functional currency.  

C. Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. The following items 
are measured on each reporting date as under: 

 Defined Benefit plans- plan assets at fair value 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell as asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized 
into Level 1,2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the 
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
entity can access at the measurement date; 

 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
D. Use of estimates and judgments 
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are 
prudent and reasonable. Actual result may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively. 
 
Judgments: 
 
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on 
the amounts recognized in the financial statements have been given below: 

 Classification of leases into finance or operating lease 
 Whether an arrangement contains a lease. 



 Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held and 
assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties: 
 
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 
material adjustment in the subsequent period financial statements is included below: 

 Estimation of current and deferred tax expense and asset/ liability. 

 Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment. 
 Estimation of defined benefit obligation. 

 Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions and contingencies. 

 Impairment of trade receivables. 
 
E. Critical accounting estimates and judgments 
 
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will 
seldom equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of 
judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and 
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of 
these estimated and judgments is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of 
calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements. 
 
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
 

1. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets 
Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in 
respect of the periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life 
and the expected residual value at the end of its life. 
The useful lives and residual values of Group’s assets are determined by management at the time the asset is 
acquired. The lives are based on historical experience with similar as well as anticipation of future events, 
which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. 
 

2. Employee benefits 
Defined benefit plans and other long-term benefits are evaluated with reference to uncertain events and based 
upon actuarial assumptions including among others discount rates, expected rates of return on plan assets, 
expected rates of salary increases, estimated retirement dates, mortality rates. The significant assumptions 
used to account for employees benefits are described in Note no K. 

3. Revenue Recognition 
The Group assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the 
contract. Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The Group allocates 
the elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is 
observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations. The Group exercises 
judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of 
time. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which 
such losses become probable based on the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract. 

4. Leases 
The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. 
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Group uses significant judgment in assessing the 
lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The discount rate is generally 
based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with 
similar characteristics. 



5. Loss allowance for receivables 
The Group determines the allowance for credit losses based on historical loss experience adjusted to reflect 
current and estimated future economic conditions. The Group considered current and anticipated future 
economic conditions relating to industries the Group deals with and the countries where it operates. In 
calculating expected credit loss, the Group has also considered credit reports and other related credit 
information for its customers to estimate the probability of default in future and has taken into account 
estimates of possible effect from the pandemic relating to COVID -19. 

6. Taxes 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to 
determine the amount of deferred tax asset that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level 
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

7. Contingencies 
On an ongoing basis, Group reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies and 
obligations. Obligations relating to project executions is largely depended upon performance of services by 
respective contractors for contingent losses that are considered Probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an 
accrual in financial statements. Loss contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but 
disclosed as Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote 
are not disclosed in the financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognised until the contingency has 
been resolved ad amounts are received or receivable. 
 

      3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

A. Current and non-current classification 
 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group's normal operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Assets: An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
 
a) It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group's normal operating 
cycle; 
 
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;  
 
c) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
 
d) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting date. 
 
Liabilities: A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
 
a) It is expected to be settled in the Group's normal operating cycle; 
 
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
 
c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
 
d) The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its 
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 
 
All other assets/ liabilities are classified as noncurrent. Based on the nature of products and the time between 
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in Cash or cash equivalents, the Group has 



ascertained its normal operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of Current / Noncurrent classification of 
assets and liabilities. 
 
B. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 
 
PPE is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits 
availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. Property, plant and 
equipment acquired on hire purchase basis are recognized at their cash values. For qualifying assets, 
borrowing costs are capitalized in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. 
 
For transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of PPE measured 
as per I-GAAP less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment on the transition date of 1st April, 
2019. 
 
PPE not ready for the Ended use on the Balance Sheet date is disclosed as "capital work in-progress. 
 
Depreciation is recognized using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the assets (other than 
freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives specified in 
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by 
technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. 
 
Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of 
the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual values are also 
reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/ residual value 
is accounted on prospective basis. 
 
Depreciation on additions to / deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the period of use. 
 
An item of Property, plant and equipment is derecognized when it is estimated that Group will not receive 
future economic benefits from its use or upon its disposal. Any gains and losses on disposal of such item of 
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying 
amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 
 

C. Depreciation and amortization 
 
Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual values are determined based on technical parameters 
/ assessment, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating 
conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers 
warranties and maintenance support, etc. 
 
The estimated useful life of Property, Plant & Equipment is aligned to the useful life specified under Schedule 
II to the Companies Act, 2013 except useful life for computing depreciation in the following case: 
 
Assets  Useful Life (Years)  

Buildings 30 - 60 

Plant and Machinery  8 - 20 

Office Equipment  5 

Furniture & Fixtures  10 

Vehicles  8 - 10 



Computers  3 

Energy Saving Equipment  15 

Pollution Control Equipment  15 

Electric Installations  10 

 

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair                                     
approximation of the period over which the Property, Plant and Equipment are likely to be used.   

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition 
or installation, and in the case of a new project, from the date of commencement of commercial production.  

Depreciation on an item of property, plant and equipment sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped, is provided up to 
the date on which such item of property, plant and equipment is sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped. 

The Group reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ from 
previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis. 

 
D. Impairment of assets 

 
As at the end of each accounting year, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment 
property, intangible assets and investments in subsidiary Group to determine whether there is any indication 
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the said assets are tested for 
impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. The intangible assets with indefinite life are tested 
for impairment each year. 
 
Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Recoverable amount is determined: 
 
a) in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and 
b) in the case of a cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at 
the higher of the cash generating unit's net selling price and the value in use. 
 
The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the 
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the discount rate 
(pre-tax) is determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the Group suitably adjusted for risks 
specified to the estimated cash flows of the asset 
 
For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates 
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. 
 
If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 
such deficit is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying 
amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
 
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss is recognized for the 
asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 

E. Financial Instruments 



1) Financial assets 
 
Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 
 
All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Financial assets are subsequently 
classified as measured at 

 amortized cost 

 fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

 fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Group 
changes its business model for managing financial assets. 
 
Derecognition 
 
The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset. 
 
Impairment of financial assets 
 
The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on: 
 
- Financial assets measured at amortized cost; 
 
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost has impaired and 
provisions are made for impairment accordingly. A financial asset is 'credit impaired' when one or more events 
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 
 
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and supportable 
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and 
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit 
assessment and including forward looking information. 
 
Measurement of expected credit losses 
 
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the 
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance 
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). 
 
Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet 
 
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount 
of the assets. 
 
Write-off 
 
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there 
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does 
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to 
the write-off. 
 
ii) Financial liabilities 



 
Financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost unless at initial recognition, they 
are classified as fair value through profit and loss. 
 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss is measured at fair value with all changes in fair 
value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
Derecognition 
 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. 
 
iii) Offsetting financial instruments 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on 
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency 
or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty. 
 

F. Borrowing costs 
 
Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of fixed assets are capitalised as part of cost of 
the assets, up to the date the asset is put to use. Other Borrowing cost is charged to Statement of Profit & loss 
in the year in which they are incurred. 
 

G. Income tax 
 
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in statement of profit or loss except to the 
extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 
 
Current tax 
 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year and any 
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the 
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, 
related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right 
to set off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously. 
 
Deferred tax 
 
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred 
tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the temporary difference can be utilized. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence 
that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses the Group 
recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is 
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset 
can be realized. Deferred tax assets- unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and are 



recognized /reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit 
will be realized. 
 
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the 
extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Group will pay normal income tax during 
the specified period. 
 

H. Inventories 
 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolesces and damages 
as under: 
 
(i) Raw and packing materials, stores and spares including fuel: At Cost on FIFO basis 
 
(ii) Stock in trade and Finished Goods: At Cost plus appropriate overheads 
 
Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in first out (FIFO) basis. 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
 

I. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks 
and other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being 
subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash 
equivalents. 
 

J. Provision and contingent liabilities  
The Group sets up a provision when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event and it will probably require an outflow of resources to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 
             The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 
             A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation that arises from past 
events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events 
where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or where 
reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of 
judgment of the management/ independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are 
adjusted to reflect the current management estimate. 
 

K. Revenue recognition  
 
A. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount 
that reflects the consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. 
 
B. Revenues from Products are recognized at a point in time when control of the goods passes to the customer, 
usually upon delivery of the goods. 
 



C. The Group Presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.  
 
D. Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which may also refer as unbilled 
revenues) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which may also refer to as 
unearned revenues). 
 
E. Government Subsidy  
Subsidy has been recognized by the Group on the basis of the notification received from the ministry of 
chemicals and fertilizers from time to time. 
  
F. other Revenue:  
Interest income : 
Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method (“EIR   that is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net 
carrying amount of the financial assets.  
 
Rental income  
Rental income arising from operating leases or on properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the 
lease terms and is included in other non-operating income in the statement of profit and loss. 
 
Insurance claims  
Insurance claims are accounted for as when admitted by the concerned authority. 
 

L. Earnings per share 
   
Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity 
shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial 
year. 
Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity 
shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 
earning per earning per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity share that could have 
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
 

4. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of the Group's standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the 
related disclosures. 
 
Significant management judgements 

a) Recognition of deferred tax assets – The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on 

an 
assessment of the probability of the Group's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be 
utilized. 

b) Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets – The evaluation of applicability of indicators of 

impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in 
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

c) Contingent liabilities– At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and 

legal 
aspects, the Group assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. 
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement. 
 



d) Provisions – At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal 
aspects, the Group assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. 
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement. 

e) Impact of Covid-19 Outbreak – The extent to which the Covid-19 pandemic will impact the Group will 
depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among other things, any new 
information concerning the severity of the Covid-19 pandemic and any further action by the Government or 
the Group to contain its spread or mitigate its impact. 
 
Significant estimates 

a) Impairment of financial assets – At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed 

over 
expected life, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates, the management assesses the 
expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances. Further, management also considers the 
factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with 
industry and country in which the customer operates. 

b) Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets – Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of 

depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties 
in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence  



Note As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
PARTICULARS No (Audited) (Audited)

 ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets

a) Property, Plant & Equipment 5 7,841,549                             8,181,560                            
b) Right to Use Assets  
c) Intangible Assets 6 487,800                                503,400                               
d) Capital work in Progress 7 2,437,845                             2,406,275                            
e) Financial Assets

i. Investments 8 -                                        6,000,000                            
ii. Loans & Advances  -                                       
iii. Others 9 3,280,780                             10,252,269                          

f) Deffered Tax Assets (Net) 10 1,495,987                             1,386,062                            
g) Other non-current assets 11 -                                        2,671,319                            

15,543,961                           31,400,884                          
2 Current Assets

a) Inventories 12 384,095                                569,295                               
b) Financial Assets

 i. Investments -                                       
 ii. Trade Receivables 13 23,209,113                           42,999,670                          

iii. Cash and cash equivalent 14 6,332,241                             1,096,242                            
iv. Bank Balances -                                       
v. Loans and Advances 15 9,087,267                             6,518,456                            
vi. Others 16 947,500                                1,606,860                            

c) Other current assets 17 3,965,304                             8,064,559                            
  43,925,519                           60,855,082                          

Total Assets 59,469,480                           92,255,966                          

   
 

1 Equity  
a) Equity Share Capital 18 101,890,980                         101,890,980                        
b) Other equity 19 (63,640,580)                         -22,404,012                         

  38,250,400                           79,486,968                          
2 Liabilities

Non-current liabilites
a) Financial Liabilities

i. Borrowings -                                       
ii. Others -                                       

b) Provisions -                                       
c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) -                                       
d) Other Non-current liabilities -                                       

-                                        -                                       
Current Liabilities

a) Financial Liabilities  
 i. Borrowings -                                       

ii. Lease Liability -                                       
iii. Trade Payables 20 3,428,856                             2,613,262                            
iv. Others 21 14,942,228                           9,439,603                            

b) Provision -                                       
c) Other current liabilities 22 2,847,996                             716,133                               
d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 23 -                                        -                                       

 21,219,080                           12,768,998                          

Total Equity and Liabilities 59,469,480                           92,255,966                          

Significant Accounting Policies "3"  
The accompanying Notes 2, 4 to 41 are an integral part of this balance sheet.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
N K Mittal & Associates Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane Mr. Pandurang Patekar
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 046785  

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, 18th May, 2022 Mumbai, 18th May, 2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LTD
Statement of Consolidated Audited Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022



31.03.2022 31.03.2021
PARTICULARS (Audited) (Audited)

 Revenue from operation 24 49,100,556                12,318,427                    
 Other Income 25 62,254                       437,034                         
 Total Revenue 49,162,811                12,755,461                    
 Expenses
 Cost of materials consumed -                             -                                

Purchases of stock in trade -                                
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress
and stock in trade 26 185,200                     579,075                         
Employee benefit expenses 27 10,987,725                7,971,362                      
Finance costs 28 77,004                       573,040                         
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 29 2,945,169                  3,872,640                      
Other expenses 30 76,242,825                36,141,923                    
Total Expenses 90,437,924                49,138,040                    

 Profit before Exceptional Items & Tax (3-4) -41,275,113               -36,382,579                  
 Exceptional items -                                
 Pofit / (loss) before tax -41,275,113               -36,382,579                  
 Tax expenses 31

Current Tax -                                
Deferred Tax 112,000                     214,449.86                    
Short/ (excess) tax provision of earlier years 71,000                       -                                
Total tax expenses  (Net) 183,000                     214,449.86                    

 Net Profit / (loss) for the year -41,239,113               -36,169,625                  
 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss -                                
-                               

 Other Comprehensive Income/ Loss (net of taxes) -                                
 Total Comprehensive Income -41,239,113               -36,169,625                  
 Earnings Per Share 32

a) Basic (in Rs) -4.05                          -3.55                             
b) Diluted (in Rs) -4.05                          -3.55                             

Significant Accounting Policies "3"
The accompanying Notes 2, 4 to 41 are an integral part of this balance sheet.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
N K Mittal & Associates Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane Mr. Pandurang Patekar
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 046785  

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, 18th May, 2022 Mumbai, 18th May, 2022

 

Less : Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or 

Note 
No

 Year Ended

KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
Statement of Audited Consolidated Profit And Loss for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022



A. Equity Share Capital

No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 10,189,098              101,890,980.00           3,286,806             32,868,060.00         
Changes in equity share capital during the year -                          -                               6,902,292             69,022,920.00         
Balance at the end of the reporting period 10,189,098              101,890,980.00           10,189,098           101,890,980.00       

B. Other Equity
Total

Securities 
Premium Retained Earnings

Securities 
Premium Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year
01.04.2020 -                          -                               61,260,012           21,528,521             82,788,533             

 
Movement during the year -                          -                               -61,260,012          -43,932,533            -105,192,545         

Balance at the end of the reporting period
31.03.2021 -                          -22,404,012                 -                        -22,404,012            -22,404,012           

Movement during the year -                          -41,236,568                 -                        -                          -41,236,568           

Balance at the end of the reporting period
31.03.2021 -                          -63,640,581                 -                        -22,404,012            -63,640,581           

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
N K Mittal & Associates Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane Mr. Pandurang Patekar
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 046785   

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, 18th May, 2022 Mumbai, 18th May, 2022

KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

-                                                    

-                                                    

Particulars

Reserve and Surplus
Other Comprehensive Income

-                                                    

-                                                    

-                                                    

Reserve and Surplus

Particulars
As at 31st March 2021As at 31st March 2022



KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
Audited Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

Particulars

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit / (Loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (41,275,113)   (36,382,579)        
Adjusted for :
Depreciation 2,945,169           3,872,640            
Sundry debtors written off 31,115,671         -                      
Profit on sale of Asset 3,942,732           -                      
Interest received 62,254                38,065,826       (296,354)              3,576,286           

(3,209,287)       (32,806,293)        

Operating  Profit / Loss before Working Capital Changes (3,209,287)     (32,806,293)        

Changes in Working Capital
Adjusted for increase / decrease in operating Assets :
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (11,324,798)        8,226,824            
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Asset 4,099,255           (1,455,784)           
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans and Advances 6,971,489           1,345,011            
(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans and Advances & Others (1,909,451)          4,255,875            
(Increase)/Decrease in Non Current Asset 2,671,319           7,441,879            
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 185,200              579,075               

Adjusted for increase / decrease in operating Liabilities :
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 815,593              463,392               
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilites Financial Liability (Others) 5,502,625           3,352,060            
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liability 2,131,863           (4,394,532)           
Increase/(Decrease) in Current tax Liabilities (net) -                      (3,746,310)           
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions -                      -                      

Cash Generated from / (used in) Operations 9,143,096       16,067,490         
 
Tax Paid / (Refund) (71,000)               -                      
Net Cash from Operating Activities 5,862,809       (16,738,803)        

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in shares 2,057,000           -                      
FD Placed (2,300,000)          12,636,851          
Purchase of Fixed Assets (2,621,129)          (889,382)              
Sale of Fixed Assets -                      -                      

(2,864,129)       11,747,469         
Net Cash generated / (used in) Investing Activities (2,864,129)     11,747,469         

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of Shares -                      -                      
Premium Received on issue of shares -                      -                      
Interest received (62,254)               296,534               

296,534              
Net Cash from Financing Activities (62,254)          296,534              

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,936,425       (4,694,800)          
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 700,985          5,395,785           
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,637,411       700,985              
Notes :
1. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flow'
2. The Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary in order to conform to this year's presentation.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
N K Mittal & Associates Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane Mr. Pandurang Patekar
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 046785   

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, 18th May, 2022 Mumbai, 18th May, 2022

 

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
(Audited) (Audited)



PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Note 5. Tangible Assets

Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Written Off Total upto

   PARTICULAR  As at 01.04.2021 During During  As at 31.03.2022 01.04.2021  For the year 
During The 

year 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021 
The year The year

Air Conditioner 1,316,842           279,438             -                  1,596,280           962,114             132,792          -                    1,094,906          501,374               354,728               
-                      

Furniture  Fixtures 12,408,230         1,141,450          -                  13,549,680         7,044,345          1,479,294       -                    8,523,639          5,026,040            5,363,885            
-                      

Office Equipments 2,471,208           500,739             -                  2,971,947           2,053,759          244,373          -                    2,298,132          673,815               417,449               
-                      

Computer 14,914,588         577,932             -                  15,492,520         12,879,376        981,682          -                    13,861,058        1,631,462            2,035,212            
-                      

Electrical Equipment 51,000                -                    -                  51,000                50,043               132                 -                    50,175               825                      957                     
-                      

Cycle 2,375                  -                    -                  2,375                  2,375                 -                    2,375                 -                      -                      

EPBX System 46,872                -                    -                  46,872                40,911               828                 -                    41,739               5,133                   5,961                  

Camera & Accessories 19,123                -                    -                  19,123                15,755               468                 -                    16,223               2,900                   3,368                  

 T O T A L 31,230,238         2,499,559          -                33,729,797       23,048,678      2,839,569     -                   25,888,247      7,841,549          8,181,560          

2,621,129          
Note 6. Intangible Assets

Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Total upto

   PARTICULAR  As at 01.04.2021 During During  As at 31.03.2022  01.04.2021  For the year Adjustment  31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021 

The year The year

Trademark 418,089              90,000               508,089              389,689             10,600            -                    400,289             107,800               28,400                

Intellectual Property Rights 950,000              -                    -                  950,000              475,000             95,000            -                    570,000             380,000               475,000               

 T O T A L 1,368,089           90,000               -                1,458,089         864,689           105,600        -                   970,289           487,800             503,400             

Note 7. Capital Work in Progress

Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Total upto

   PARTICULAR  As at 01.04.2021 During During  As at 31.03.2022  01.04.2021  For the year Adjustment  31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021 

The year The year

E Application and E-Programe 835,075              50,000               18,430            866,645              -                    -                  -                    -                    866,645               835,075               

Portal for recruitment training and 
Placement 1,571,200           -                    -                  1,571,200           -                    -                  -                    -                    1,571,200            1,571,200            

 T O T A L 2,406,275           50,000               18,430          2,437,845         -                  -                -                   -                  2,437,845          2,406,275          

a) Capital Ageing Schedule 

CWIP for a period of Projects in Progres Total
Less than 1 Year 31,570                 31,570               
1-2 Years 98,000                 98,000               
2-3 Years 151,000               151,000             
More than 3 Years 2,157,275            2,157,275          
Total 2,437,845            2,437,845          

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK



PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Note 5. Tangible Assets

Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Written Off Total upto

   PARTICULAR  As at 01.04.2020 During During  As at 31.03.2021 01.04.2020  For the year 
 During The 

year 31.03.2021  As at 31.03.2021  As at 31.03.2020 
The year The year

Air Conditioner 1,266,060                    50,782               -                  1,316,842           798,812             163,302          -                    962,114             354,728               467,248               
-                      

Furniture  Fixtures 11,838,230                  570,000             -                  12,408,230         5,394,447          1,649,898       -                    7,044,345          5,363,885            6,443,783            
-                      

Office Equipments 2,471,208                    -                    -                  2,471,208           1,790,551          263,208          -                    2,053,759          417,449               680,657               
-                      

Computer 14,761,988                  152,600             -                  14,914,588         11,190,408        1,688,968       -                    12,879,376        2,035,212            3,571,580            
-                      

Electrical Equipment 51,000                         -                    -                  51,000                49,887               156                 -                    50,043               957                      1,113                  
-                      

Cycle 2,375                           -                    -                  2,375                  2,375                 -                  -                    2,375                 -                      -                      

EPBX System 46,872                         -                    -                  46,872                39,947               964                 -                    40,911               5,961                   6,925                  

Camera & Accessories 19,123                         -                    -                  19,123                15,211               544                 -                    15,755               3,368                   3,912                  

 T O T A L 30,456,856                  773,382            -                31,230,238       19,281,638      3,767,040     -                   23,048,678      8,181,560          11,175,218        

Note 6. Intangible Assets

Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Total upto

   PARTICULAR  As at 01.04.2020 During During  As at 31.03.2021  01.04.2020  For the year Adjustment  31.03.2021  As at 31.03.2021  As at 31.03.2020 

The year The year

Trademark 400,089                       18,000               418,089              379,089             10,600            -                    389,689             28,400                 21,000                

Intellectual Property Rights 950,000                       -                    -                  950,000              380,000             95,000            -                    475,000             475,000               570,000               

 T O T A L 1,350,089                    18,000              -                1,368,089         759,089           105,600        -                   864,689           503,400             591,000             

Note 7. Capital Work in Progress

Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Total upto

   PARTICULAR  As at 01.04.2020 During During  As at 31.03.2021  01.04.2020  For the year Adjustment  31.03.2021  As at 31.03.2021  As at 31.03.2020 

The year The year

E Application and E-Programe 737,075                       98,000               835,075              -                    -                  -                    -                    835,075               737,075               

Portal for recruitment training and 
Placement 1,571,200                    -                    -                  1,571,200           -                    -                  -                    -                    1,571,200            1,571,200            

 T O T A L 2,308,275                    98,000              -                2,406,275         -                  -                -                   -                  2,406,275          2,308,275          

a) Capital Ageing Schedule 

CWIP for a period of Projects in Progress Total
Less than 1 Year 98,000                          98,000                
1-2 Years 151,000                        151,000              
2-3 Years 241,749                        241,749              
More than 3 Years 1,915,526                     1,915,526          
Total 2,406,275                     2,406,275          

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK



Note 8. INVESTMENT (Non Current) As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Shares of Arnold Holding Limited
(7,50,000 shares of Rs. 8/- each) -                                                 6,000,000                          

-                                                 6,000,000                          
 
Note 9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

Others

      Other Advances 7,000,000                          
      Security Deposit 3,280,780                                       3,252,269                          

3,280,780                                       10,252,269                        
 
Note 10. DEFFERED TAX ASSETS (Net) As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

      Deffered Tax 1,495,987                                       1,386,062                           
1,495,987                                       1,386,062                          

Note 11. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSET As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

      Preliminary Expenses to the extent not written off 2,671,319                          

-                                                 2,671,319                          

Note 12. INVENTORIES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

      Stock in trade 384,095                                          569,295                             

384,095                                          569,295                             

Note 13.TRADE RECEIVABLES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

 
Considered good - Unsecured 23,209,113                                     42,999,670                        
Less:
Allowance for Bad and doubtfull debts

23,209,113                                     42,999,670                        
Ageing of Trade receivable as on March 31, 2022

KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2022

Particulars
Outstanding for following period the due date of payments



Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 22,147,113                                     -                                     -                         -                           22,147,113         
ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful -                                                 -                                     -                         -                           -                      
iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good -                                                 -                                     -                         1,062,000                 1,062,000           
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful -                                                 -                                     -                         -                           -                      

22,147,113                                     -                                     -                         1,062,000                23,209,113         

Ageing of Trade receivable as on March 31, 2021

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 41,937,670                                     -                                     -                         -                           41,937,670         
ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful -                                                 -                                     -                         -                           -                      
iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good -                                                 -                                     -                         1,062,000                 1,062,000           
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful -                                                 -                                     -                         -                           -                      

41,937,670                                     -                                     -                         1,062,000                42,999,670         

Note 14.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

       Cash in Hand 746,824                                          48,911                               
       Balances in Bank 2,890,587                                       651,894                             
       Fixed Deposit with bank 2,694,830                                       395,437                              

6,332,241                                       1,096,242                          

Note 15. LOANS AND ADVANCES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

     Interest Receivable* 9,087,267                                       6,518,456                          

9,087,267                                       6,518,456                          
* Refer Note 35
Note 16. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

      Advances 117,500                                          1,606,860                          
      Others 830,000                                          -                                     
      Prepaid Expenses -                                     

947,500                                          1,606,860                          

Note 17. OTHER CURRENT ASSET As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

      Preliminary Expenses to the extent not written off 2,831,744                                       7,365,909                          
      Balance with Revenue Authority 1,133,560                                       698,650                             

3,965,304                                       8,064,559                          

Particulars
Outstanding for following period the due date of payments

Particulars



Note 18. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
A) Authorised,Issued,Subscribed and paid up Share Capital 
and par value per share
Authorised Share Capital
1,10,000,00 Equity shares of Rs 10/- each 110,000,000.00                          110,000,000                       

110,000,000                               110,000,000                       

Issued,subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
1,01,89,098 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each fully paid up.                           101,890,980.00 101,890,980                       

101,890,980                               101,890,980                       

B) Reconciliation of no. of shares As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Opening 10,189,098                                3,286,806                           
Add: Bonus shares issued during the year 6,902,292                           
Add: Prefrential shares issued during the year -                                      
Add: Issued during the year -                                      
Closing 10,189,098                                10,189,098                         

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

In Equity Shares
Sudhakar Sonawane
No of Shares 6,125,685                                   6,125,685                            
% Holding In Class 60.12% 60.12%

Note 19. OTHER EQUITY As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

Securities Premium Account  
At the beginning of the year 61,260,012                         
Movement during the year 61,260,012-                         
Balance at the end of the year -                                      

Surplus in  Profit and loss Account
Balance at the beginning of the year 22,404,012-                                21,528,521                         
Add: Profit for the year -41,236,568.48                           36,169,625-                         

63,640,580-                                14,641,104-                         
Less: Appropriations
         Issue of Bonus Shares to Shareholders 7,762,908                           
         Proposed Dividend (Including Corporate Dividend Tax) -                                      

-                                              7,762,908                           

Balance at the end of the year -63,640,580.48                           22,404,012-                         
(63,640,580)                               (22,404,012)                        

Note 20. TRADE PAYABLES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

Trade Payables for expenses & Services*   
Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises                                         -   
Total outstanding due to creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises                                   3,428,856                            2,613,262    

3,428,856                                  2,613,262                           
* Refer Note 36
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises : Refer Note 40

The Company has issued Bonus Shares to its existing Shareholders of the Company in the ratio of 21:10 alloted on 02nd July, 2020 held
at Board Meeting on 20th May, 2020.

KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2022

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares entitled to one vote
per share.
The company has made Preferential Allotment of 4,00,000 Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up for cash at a
price of Rs.80/- per equity share (including share premium of Rs.70/- per equity shares) aggregating to Rs. 3.20 Crores held at Board
Meeting on 28th January, 2020.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.



Ageing of Trade Payable as on March 31, 2022

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
MSME -                                             -                                      -                           -                           -             
Others 2,416,006                                  1,012,850                           -                            -                           3,428,856  
Disputed - MSME -                                             -                                      -                            -                           -             
Disputed - Others -                                             -                                      -                            -                           -             

2,416,006                                  1,012,850                           -                           -                          3,428,856  
Ageing of Trade Payable as on March 31, 2021

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
MSME -                                             -                                      -                           -                           -             
Others 1,012,850                                  1,600,412                           -                            -                           2,613,262  
Disputed - MSME -                                             -                                      -                            -                           -             
Disputed - Others -                                             -                                      -                            -                           -             

1,012,850                                  1,600,412                           -                           -                          2,613,262  

Note 21. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021  
Employee Benefit provisions

       Salaries payable 1,206,611                                  1,359,308                            
Others  
       Liability For Expenses 13,735,617                                8,080,295                            

 14,942,228                                9,439,603                           

Note 22. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 
       Statutory Dues 2,847,996                                  716,133                              

 2,847,996                                  716,133                              

Note 23. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET) As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 
       Provision for taxation (Net of advance tax) -                                      

 -                                      

Particulars
Outstanding for following period the due date of payments

Particulars
Outstanding for following period the due date of payments

The Company has not received the required information from Suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act 2006. Hence, disclosure relating to amounts unpaid  as at the period end together with interest paid / payble  
as required under the said Act have not been made.



Note 24. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
For the year ended 31st 

March 2022
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

Gross Sales and Royalty Receipts 49,100,556                        12,318,427                         

49,100,556                             12,318,427                         

Note 25. OTHER INCOME
For the year ended 31st 

March 2022
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021
  
      Other Interest 62,254                                    296,534                              
      Other Income -                                         140,500                              

62,254                                    437,034                              

Note 26. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES
For the year ended 31st 

March 2022
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

      Opening Stock 569,295                                  1,148,370                           

                                  569,295 1,148,370                           

      Closing Stock 384,095                                  569,295                              

185,200                                 579,075                              

Note 27. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
For the year ended 31st 

March 2022
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

      Salaries Wages and Bonus 8,910,848                              6,516,588                           
      Staff Welfare Expenses 255,877                                 48,110                                
       Directors Remuneration 1,821,000                              1,406,664                           

10,987,725                            7,971,362                           

Note 28. FINANCE EXPENSES
 For the year ended 31st 

March 2022 
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

       Interest paid 66,619                                    561,093                               
       Bank Charges 10,385                                    11,948                                 
  

77,004                                    573,040                              

Note 29. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION CHARGES
 For the year ended 31st 

March 2022 
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

       Depreciation & Amortization 2,945,169                               3,872,640                            
2,945,169                               3,872,640                            

Note 30. OTHER EXPENSES
 For the year ended 31st 

March 2022 
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

 

 

KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2022



         Payment made to auditors
                               - Audit fees 435,000                                  200,000                              
         Advertisment Expenses 10,024,258                             6,197,502                           
         Brokerage & Commission 61,128                                    1,034,168                           
         Computer Consumables 22,623                                    122,524                              
         Computer Education Related Expenses 2,615,902                               1,318,875                           
         Conveyance & Travelling 650,872                                  348,085                              
         Donation 5,000                                      
         Electricity Charges 749,970                                  688,560                              
         Faculty Expenses 218,625                                  750,206                              
         GST Debit 312,736                                  328,490                              
         ITC Disallowed 319,717                                  339,276                              
         Insurance Expenses 5,129                                      5,129                                  
         Issuer Fees 45,000                                    -                                      
         Loss on Sale of Shares 3,942,732                               -                                      
         Legal & Professional Charges 1,866,610                               1,883,579                           
         Listing Fees 341,951                                  343,900                              
         Provision for Bad debts 31,115,671                             5,998,200                           
         Purchase of Notes -                                         483,834                              
         Meeting Expenses 30,190                                    45,000                                
         Office Expenses 1,277,605                               2,492,958                           
         Preliminary Expenses written/off 7,205,484                               7,318,950                           
         Rent Rates & Taxes 8,752,230                               5,438,674                           
         Repairs & Maintainance 503,857                                  311,093                              
         Technical Charges 5,104,567                               -                                      
         Telephone Expenses 338,670                                  492,921                              
        Web development 297,300                                  -                                      

76,242,825                             36,141,923                         

 

Note 31. TAX EXPENSES
 For the year ended 31st 

March 2022 
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

         Current Tax -                                      
         Tax of previous year 71,000                                    -                                      
         Deferred Tax 112,000                                  214,450                               
 
 183,000                                  214,450                              

Note 32. EARNING PER SHARE
 For the year ended 31st 

March 2022 
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021

         Profit after Taxation -41,239,113.04                      -36,169,625                        
         Weighted Average Number of ordinary shares outstanding 10,189,098.00                        10,189,098                          
         Earnings per share
          - Basic (in Rs.) (4.05)                                      -3.55                                   
          - Diluted (In Rs.) (4.05)                                      -3.55                                   

Note 33. CONTINGENT LIABILITES AND OTHER MATTERS
 For the year ended 31st 

March 2022 
For the year ended 31st 

March 2021
 
         a) Contigent Liabilites -                                      
         b) Commitments -                                      

0 -                                      

 



Note 34 : FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS- FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
I. The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows: 

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI
Amortised 

Cost

Financial Assets
Inventories -                       -                     384,095            -                    -                    569,295            
Trade Receivables -                       -                     23,209,113       -                    -                    42,999,670       
Cash and Cash Equivalent -                       -                     6,332,241         -                    -                    1,096,242         
Loans & Advances -                       -                     9,087,267         -                    -                    6,518,456         
Other Financial Assets -                       -                     947,500            -                    -                    1,606,860         
Other Current Assets -                       -                     3,965,304         -                    -                    8,064,559         
Total Financial Assets -                   -                  43,925,519       -                 -                 60,855,082       
Financial Liabilities
Trade payable -                       -                     3,428,856         -                    -                    2,613,262         
Other Financial Liabilities -                       -                     14,942,228       -                    -                    9,439,603         
Other Current Liabilities -                       -                     2,847,996         -                    -                    716,133            
Current tax Liabilities (Net) -                       -                     -                       -                    -                    -                   
Total Financial Liabilities -                   -                  21,219,080       -                 -                 12,768,998       

II. Financial Risk Management
The Group has exposure to the following risk arising from fiancial instruments:

- Credit Risk
- Liquidity Risk; and
- Market Risk

i. Risk management framework
The Group company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group company's risk management 
framework. The board of directors has established the processes to ensure that executive management controls risks through the 
mechanism of property defined framework.
The Group company's risk management polices are establised to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate
risk limites and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed by the 
board annually to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group company's activities. The Group, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations.
The Group company's Audit Committee oversees compliance with the Group company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the 
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight 
role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to its Audit Committee.

ii. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers and loan given.
The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade and other receivables
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management 
also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and 
country in which customers operate.
The Group Company Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness
before the company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. 

iii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. The group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as fas as 
possible , that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilites when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damange to the group's reputation.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the cash flows generated from 
operations to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, 
the Group's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group liquidity position comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities and cash
and cash equivalent on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out in accordance with practice and limits set by the 
company. In additon, the Group Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering 
the level of liquid assets nacessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidty ratios against internal and external requlatory

As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars



requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

a) Maturities of financial liablites
The following are the remaing contracutal maturities of financial liabilites at the reporting date.

Carrying 
Amount Total

Contractual 
cash flows : 
With in 1 

Years
Carrying 
Amount Total

Contractual 
cash flows : 
With in 1 

Years

Financial Liabilities
Trade payable 3,428,856            3,428,856           3,428,856         2,613,262         2,613,262         2,613,262         
Other Financial Liabilities 14,942,228          14,942,228         14,942,228       9,439,603         9,439,603         9,439,603         
Other Current Liabilities 2,847,996            2,847,996           2,847,996         716,133            716,133            716,133            
Current tax Liabilities (Net) -                       -                     -                       -                    -                    -                   
Total Financial Liabilities 21,219,080       21,219,080      21,219,080       12,768,998     12,768,998     12,768,998       

iv. Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices which will affect the 
Company' s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market exposures withing acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
Currency risk : As group does not deals in foreign currencies, therefore this risk mitigates for the company.
Commodity risk: As group deals in services sector , therefore this risk mitigates for the company.
Interest Risk: As the group does not have any borrowings from outsider, therefore this risk mitigates for the company.

Note 34 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company manages its capital to ensure that is will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Compnay consits of Zero debt and having only equity and 
internal accurals.
The company's net debt equity ratio is as follows:

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Net debt 0 0
Equity 38,250,400       79,486,968      
Debt/ Equity ratio -                   -                  

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021



Note No. 36 Related Party transactions
Details of related parties:

Priyanka Pandey (CS) from 21.10.2021

Particulars  Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited              Keerti Institute India 
Private Limited

Keerti Tutorial India 
Private Limited

Share Capital    100,000                        100,000                            

Non Current Investment                                                              200,000   

Non Current : Loans And Advances                                                           8,649,018 4,922,218                                              3,726,800 

Revenue from Operations                                                                        -                      12,137,818 -                                   

Other Income-Interest on Loan                                                           3,203,422 -                               -                                   

Finance charges Interest on loan                                                                        -                        1,858,014                          1,345,408 

Payment to key Management Personnel

Remuneration to directors
Sudhakar Sonawane (MD)                                                           1,202,500                                   -   -                                   
Pandurang Patekar (Director)                                                              398,000                         220,500 -                                   

Indirect Expenses    
Royalty                                                         12,137,818 -                                -                                    

Salary
Santosh Sonawane                                                              290,790                                   -   -                                   
Nutan Sonawane                                                                        -                           246,735 -                                   
Vaishali Nile                                                                        -                           197,605 -                                   
Vinod Narsale                                                              675,590                                   -   -                                   
P V Vinod                                                              811,770                                   -   -                                   
Mahipal Chauhan                                                              202,500                                   -   -                                   
Priyanka Pandey                                                              187,420                                   -   -                                   

Rent
Sudhakar Sonawane                                                              186,000 496,000                        124,000                            
Sangeeta Sonawane                                                              186,000 496,000                        124,000                            
Kisan Sonawane                                                                        -   180,000                        -                                    
Raju Sonawane                                                                        -   -                                225,000                            

Sitting fees
Archana Sanjay Saini                                                                15,000                                   -   -                                   
Manish Heeralal Chandak                                                                17,500                                   -   -                                   
Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit                                                                17,500                                   -   -                                   
Tanul Raju Sonawane                                                                17,500                                   -   -                                   

KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED

Description of relationship Names of related parties

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Sudhakar Sonawane (MD)
Pandurang Patekar (Director)
Archana Sanjay Saini (Director)
Manish Heeralal Chandak (Director)
Rajvirendra Singh (Director)
Tanual Raju Sonawane Director)
Soniya (Director)
Vinod Narsale (CFO)
P V Vinod (COO)

Mahipal Chauhan (CS) upto 20.10.2021

 Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited  (Formerly 
Known as Keerti Software and Hardware Infotech 
Private Limited) 

Wholly owned Subsidiary in India  Keerti Institute India Private Limited 

100% Holding Company in India

Wholly owned Subsidiary in India  Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited 

Relative of Director's

 Sangeeta Sonawane 
 Santosh Sonawane 
 Nutan Sonawane 
 Vaishali Nile 
 Kisan Sonawane 
 Raju Sonawane 

Note: Related parties have been identified by the Management.      
Details of transactions with  related parties  as on 31st March, 2022 :-



Particulars  Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited              Keerti Institute India Keerti Tutorial India 
Payable
Rent                                                              372,000                      992,000.0                          248,000.0 
Remuneration                                                              219,500                        19,500.0                                       -   
Salary                                                           147,050.0                        19,715.0                                       -   
Sitting fees                                                             55,000.0                                   -                                         -   
Loans & Advances                                                                        -                      32,748,940                        24,697,133 
Receivable
Loans & Advances                                                      57,446,073.3                                   -                                         -   

Particulars  Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited              
(Formerly Known as Keerti Software and 
Hardware Infotech Private Limited)

Keerti Institute India 
Private Limited

Keerti Tutorial India 
Private Limited

Share Capital    100,000                        100,000                            

Non Current Investment                                                              200,000   

Non Current : Loans And Advances                                                              422,500 211,250                        211,250                            

Revenue from Operations                                                                        -   4,582,717                     -                                   

Other Income-Interest on Loan                                                           5,544,289 -                               -                                   

Finance charges Interest on loan                                                                        -   3,271,802                     2,272,487                         

Payment to key Management Personnel

Remuneration to directors
Sudhakar Sonawane (MD)                                                           1,050,000                                   -   -                                   
Pandurang Patekar (Director)                                                              172,500                         184,164 -                                   

Indirect Expenses    
Royalty 4,582,717                                                                                            -   -                                   

Salary
Santosh Sonawane                                                              168,850                                   -   -                                   
Nutan Sonawane                                                                27,767                           70,500 -                                   
Vaishali Nile                                                                        -                             86,052 -                                   
Vinod Narsale                                                              593,000                                   -   -                                   
P V Vinod                                                              516,335                                   -   -                                   
Mahipal Chauhan                                                              152,250 -                                

Rent    
Sudhakar Sonawane                                                              211,250 160,000                        163,750                            
Sangeeta Sonawane                                                              211,250 160,000                        163,750                            
Kisan Sonawane                                                                        -   180,000                        -                                    
Raju Sonawane                                                                        -   -                                225,000                            

Sitting fees
Archana Sanjay Saini                                                                12,500                                   -   -                                   
Manish Heeralal Chandak                                                                  5,000                                   -   -                                   
Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit                                                                15,000                                   -   -                                   
Tanul Raju Sonawane                                                                12,500                                   -   -                                   

Particulars  Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited              Keerti Institute India 
Private Limited

Keerti Tutorial India 
Private Limited

Payable
Rent                                                              422,500                                   -                                         -   
Remuneration                                                           259,832.0                        15,000.0                                       -   
Salary                                                           118,200.0                                   -                                         -   
Sitting fees                                                             32,500.0                                   -                                         -   
Loans & Advances                                                                        -                   27,826,722.4                     20,970,333.0 
Receivable
Loans & Advances                                                      48,797,055.4                                   -                                         -   

Note 37: SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company's business activity falls within a single reportable business segment, viz, Information Technology.

Balance Outstanding as on 31st March, 2021

Balance Outstanding as on 31st March, 2022

Details of transactions with  related parties  as on 31st March, 2021 :-



Note 37 : Ratio Analysis

Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021 Variance in %

A) Current Ratio
Current Assets 43,925,519                           60,855,082                           
Current Liabilities 21,219,080                           12,768,998                           

2.07                                     4.77                                      4.33
B) Debt Equity Ratio
Debt -                                       -                                        
Total Shareholders Equity 38,250,400                           79,486,968                           

-                                       -                                        -                       
C) Debt Service Coverage Ratio
EBITDA less Other Income -44,349,155                         -41,253,346                          
Total Debts -                                       -                                        

-                                       -                                        -                       
D) Return Equity Ratio
Net Profir after tax -41,239,113                         -36,169,625                          
Total Shareholders Equity 38,250,400                           79,486,968                           

-107.81% -45.50% -2.82
E) Inventory turnover ratio 
COGS -                                       -                                        
Average Inventory 476,695                                858,833                                

-                                       -                                        -                       
F) Trade Receivable turnover ratio
Revenue from Operation 49,100,556                           12,318,427                           
Average Trade receivable 33,104,391                           47,113,083                           

1.48                                     0.26                                      -5.41
G) Trade payable turnover ratio
Purchase -                                       -                                        
Average Trade payable 3,021,059                             2,381,567                             

-                                       -                                        -                       
H) Net Capital turnover ratio
Revenue from Operation 49,100,556                           12,318,427                           
Total Shareholders Equity 38,250,400                           79,486,968                           

1.28                                     0.15                                      -8.13
I) Net Profir Ratio
Net Profir after tax -41,239,113                         -36,169,625                          
Total Revenue 49,162,811                           12,755,461                           

-83.88% -283.56% -3.13
J) Return on capital employed
EBIT less Other Income -41,403,986                         -37,380,706                          
Total Assets- Current Liabilites 38,250,400                           79,486,968                           

-108.24% -47.03% -2.77



Note No 39 : Pursuant to outbreak of coronavirus disease (Covid-19) worldwide and its declaration as global pandemic, the Government 
of India, declared lockdown on March 24, 2020, followed by several restrictions imposed by the governments across the globe on the travel, 
goods movement; and transportation considering public health and safety measures. The Group has considered internal and external 
information while finalizing various estimates in relation to its financial statements upto the date of approval of the financial statements by 
the Board of Directors and has not identified any material impact on the carrying value of assets, liabilities or provisions. The group also 
has not experienced any difficulties with respect to market demand, collections or liquidity. The Board of Directors have also considered the 
impact of Covid -19 on the business for the foresseable future and have concluded that the group has sufficient resources to continue as 
a going concern. The actual impact of the global health pandemic may be different from thatwhich has been estimated, as the COVID-19
situation evolved in India and globally. The Group will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Note No 40 :Micro and Small Enterprises
Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

Amount due to vendor                                                   -                                                      -   

a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon                                                   -                                                      -   

b) the amount of interest paid                                                   -                                                      -   

c) the amount of interest due and payable                                                   -                                                      -   

d) the amount of interest accured and remaining unpaid                                                   -                                                      -   

e) the amount further interest remaining due and payable                                                   -                                                      -   

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
N K Mittal & Associates Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane Mr. Pandurang Patekar
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 046785  

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, 18th May, 2022 Mumbai, 18th May, 2022

Note No 41 :Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification / 
disclosure.
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